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MITCHELL D. STIPP, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 7531 
LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP 
10120 W. Flamingo Rd., Suite 4-124 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89147 
Telephone: 702.602.1242 
mstipp@stipplaw.com
Attorneys for Mitchell

 
 Stipp, Defendant

IN THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT  
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CLARK 

FAMILY DIVISION 

/// 

/// 

CHRISTINA CALDERON, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

MITCHELL STIPP; 

Defendant.

Case No.:   D-08-389203-Z  

Dept. No.:  H 

REPLY TO PLAINTIFF’S 
OPPOSITION TO 

COUNTERMOTION FOR 
INTERVIEW OF CHILDREN BY 

FMC, MEDIATION AT FMC, AND 
FOR CHILDREN TO EXERCISE 

TEENAGE DISCRETION 

HEARING DATE: October 1, 2019 
HEARING TIME: 11:00 a.m. 

 Radford Smith, Esq. has been Mitchell Stipp’s attorney since 2006.  Mr. Smith has been assisting 
Mitchell with the matters before the court and will be entering an appearance as co-counsel of record 
prior to the hearing on October 1, 2019.

1

1
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Electronically Filed
9/24/2019 4:24 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Defendant, Mitchell Stipp (“Mitchell”), hereby files the above-referenced reply.  

This filing is based on the papers and pleadings before the court, the memorandum of 

points and authorities that follows, the exhibits filed concurrently herewith, and the 

oral argument of the parties or their attorneys at the hearing on this matter.   

Mitchell respectfully requests the following relief: 

1. Denial of the relief requested by Plaintiff, Christina Calderon (“Christina”).

2. FMC interview the parties’ children to determine their wishes and capacity to

exercise teenage discretion with respect to the timeshare spent with each

party.

3. The parties participate in mediation at FMC to determine the parameters of

teenage discretion.

4. An order permitting the children to exercise teenage discretion with respect

to the timeshare with each party within the confines of joint physical custody.

5. If the court will not grant Mitchell’s request without an evidentiary hearing,

then the court should schedule the matter for a brief evidentiary hearing.

DATED this 24th day of September, 2019. 

LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP 

/s/ Mitchell Stipp, Esq.  
MITCHELL STIPP, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 7531  
LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP 
10120 W. Flamingo Rd., Suite 4-124  
Las Vegas, Nevada 89147 
Telephone: 702.602.1242  
mstipp@stipplaw.com 

2 AA000499
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

A. Timeline of Material Events

1. Mia Stipp (“Mia”) and Christina Calderon (“Christina”) had a physical

fight on May 9, 2019. 

2. Mia and Ethan Stipp (“Ethan”) were in Mitchell’s physical care from on

or about May 9, 2019 until June 17, 2019, nearly 6 weeks, as a result of 

Christina and Mia physically fighting. 

3. Mia and Christina had another physical fight on August 13, 2019.

4. A third-party, not Mitchell or his wife, Amy Stipp (“Amy”), makes a

report to Child Protective Services on August 14, 2019. 

5. Mia and Ethan return to Mitchell’s care on August 16, 2019.

6. A third-party, again not Mitchell or Amy, makes a report to Child

Protective Services on August 22, 2019. 

7. Mia and Ethan refuse to return to Christina’s physical care on August 23,

2019. 

8. Christina calls Metropolitan Police Department and threatens Ethan’s

baseball coach on August 23, 2019 (because Mitchell did not physically force 

the children into Christina’s care). 

3 AA000500
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9. On August 24, 2019, Christina cancels Mia’s music lessons.

10. Mitchell filed his motion on August 26, 2019 and asks Christina to work

with him to avoid protracted litigation. 

11. Valerie Fujii, Esq., enters an appearance for Christina on August 27, 2019.

12. Ms. Fuji and Mitchell speak by telephone on August 27, 2019.  They

discuss the facts of the case.  Mitchell agrees to remind the children to call/text 

Christina.   

13. Mitchell sends Ms. Fuji an email on August 28, 2019 with the audio file

of Mia’s in-person meeting with Christina on August 23, 2019.  The point of the 

audio file was to confirm Mia’s concerns with Christina and Mia’s preferences. 

14. Ms. Fujii sends a letter to Mitchell on August 28, 2019, which

misrepresents the contents of their telephone conversation and accuses Mitchell 

of “pathogenic parenting.”  Ms. Fujii is not in any position to make such 

accusations  regarding Mitchell’s parenting.  This letter fails to achieve the type 

of resolution Mitchell had hoped Ms. Fujii would facilitate with Christina.   

15. Ms. Fujii and Mitchell exchange further correspondence on August 28,

2019, pursuant to which Ms. Fujii stipulates to the involvement of Nick Ponzo. 

16. Mitchell contacts Nick Ponzo (Christina’s family therapist) on August 29,

2019 for assistance. 

4 AA000501
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17. Christina files a separate motion on August 29, 2019.

18. Christina withdraws the children from Faith Lutheran Middle and High

Schools on August 29, 2019.  The children were visibly upset and would not 

return to Christina’s care. 

19. Mitchell encouraged the children to speak to Christina while she was at

the schools.  Counselors agreed with Mitchell’s decision and facilitated the 

visits.  Mia and Ethan separately spoke to Christina in the presence of the 

principal and still declined to return to her care. 

20. The children’s schools advised Christina that they will not force the

children into Christina’s physical care.  Christina was escorted out of the 

schools, the children were released, and the children elected to leave with 

Mitchell and Amy.  There was clear concern from the schools about Christina 

leaving and the children being released at the same time. 

21. Mr. Ponzo responded to Mitchell on August 30, 2019 that Christina has

not authorized him to be involved. 

22. Mitchell emailed Christina on September 6, September 10 and

September 18 of 2019 requesting that Christina agree to meet with Mr. Ponzo 

and the children to resolve the outstanding issues before the court.    See Emails 

attached as Exhibit A to Mitchell’s Exhibits filed concurrently. 

5 AA000502
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23. Christina elects not to attend open houses at the children’s schools, Mia’s

music performances, and Ethan’s baseball practices and games between August 

23, 2019 and the date of this filing.   

Mia will be 15 years old on October 19, 2019.    She is a straight “A” student at 

Faith Lutheran High School.  She was admitted into the school’s prestigious Faith 

Lutheran Conservatory of Fine Arts Vocal Music Department for the 2019-2020 school 

year.  Mia was a FLMS cheerleader, member of the FLMS Swim Team, and part of 

FLMS’s Choir and Handbell Programs.  Mia continued to follow her passion in the 7th 

and 8th Grades with music.  Ultimately, in the 8th Grade, Mia was elected by her peers 

to be the President of the FLMS Choir and was awarded the FLA Director’s Award for 

Choir (which was provided to only one student for outstanding performance).   One of 

Mia’s teachers (Mrs. Nell, Algebra I) wrote to her upon graduation from the 8th Grade 

as follows: 

You have been one of the best kids I have had the 
pleasure of teaching.  Please continue to embrace life 
and find joy in doing your work well and 
laughing with others.  You will go far with that 
attitude and you will change people’s lives for the 
better. 

Exhibit B to Mitchell’s exhibits filed concurrently herewith are true and accurate 

copies of Mia’s choir awards, confirmation of Mia’s grades, and related materials 

supporting the above description of Mia’s successes.  

Ethan will be 13 years old on March 24, 2020.  He is an “A/B” student at Faith 

Lutheran Middle School.  He plays club baseball for a 14u team.   Ethan’s passion is 

6 AA000503
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baseball.  He played in Cooperstown, New York this past summer (where he hit four 

(4) home runs) and trained each day this summer to make a competitive club team.

Being on such a team is a substantial commitment.  Ethan has practice on Mondays, 

Wednesdays, and Fridays for three (3) hours each day.  He trains privately on Tuesdays 

and Thursdays.  He plays league games every other Thursday and has tournaments 

Saturdays and Sundays.   

Mitchell respects the orders of the court and the court’s responsibility for 

enforcing them.  Mitchell would like the children to make the decision on timeshare 

within the confines of joint physical custody.  Christina misrepresents Mitchell’s 

position:  Mitchell is not seeking a change in custody.  Mitchell simply wants the 

children to have the right to spend more time with him if there is any mistreatment or 

abuse by Christina.  Mitchell believes this option is better than forcing the children to 

remain with Christina, who emotionally blackmails them and has no problem 

physically fighting Mia.  Regulating Christina’s behavior is practically impossible.  If 

the children can leave, Mitchell believes that Christina may alter her parenting.   

The children are resilient and have endured many challenges.   Christina spent 

five (5) years before Judges Sullivan and Potter falsely claiming Mitchell was unfit, 

alleging that Mia suffered from various psychiatric ailments and disorders, and Ethan 

was sexually abused.  Thankfully, Mia and Ethan are extremely smart, caring, and 

mature.  However, they need a voice (which Mitchell is trying to give them).  For this 

reason, Mitchell does not understand why Christina would oppose an interview with 

FMC.  The court should confirm through these interviews that the children are 
7 AA000504
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intelligent and mature, have a preference, and why they have this preference.  As 

Christina repeatedly points out, the children’s preference is only one factor in 

determining their best interest.  Mitchell believes this factor may be more important 

than others but concedes that it is not determinative.   Opposing the interviews entirely 

suggests that the factor is not relevant at all.  This is clearly not the case under Nevada 

law.  

B. Summary of Arguments.

Christina engaged in acts of domestic violence with Mia in May and August of 

2019.  Ethan was present for each act during which there was punching, kicking, 

scratching, hair-pulling, biting, etc.  As a result of the physical violence, in May of 

2019, the parties agreed that Mia and Ethan would remain in Mitchell’s care for the 

remainder of May and most of June of 2019, nearly 6 weeks, Christina agreed to this 

arrangement.  If Christina was fine with the children spending an extended period of 

time with Mitchell after the first act of domestic violence, why is she opposed to it 

now?  Mitchell is not proposing that the children never see or communicate with 

Christina again.  Both children have cellular phones and are free to communicate 

with Christina at any time.    

Both children refused to return to Christina’s physical care on August 23, 2019 

as a result of the fights between Mia and Christina in May and August.  If Mia returns 

to Christina’s care, Mitchell expects there will be more physical violence between 

them.  A parent and a child should not resolve disputes this way.  Moreover, no child 

8 AA000505
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should be a witness to domestic violence between a parent and a sibling.  While both 

children are physically able to defend themselves, there is significant potential for 

physical injury and psychological harm.  Neither child should be in an environment 

where it is acceptable for a parent and child to fight each other. 

There is no order of the court which requires Mitchell physically to force the 

children to return to Christina’s care.  What if Christina and Mia fight again and Mia 

and/or Christina are seriously injured?   What if Ethan gets involved?  Although almost 

13 years old, Ethan is not physically a child.  Ethan began puberty in 4th grade.  He is 

5’9’’ tall and 130-140 pounds.  The fact that Christina has not had physical care of the 

children is not permanent.  Mitchell has agreed to waive his vacation timeshare this 

year (equal to two (2) weeks).  If exercised, the children would have been in his care 

until the hearing on October 1, 2019. 

Christina continues to claim that she will not have seen or spoken with the 

children for six (6) weeks by October 1, 2019.  This circumstance is by choice.  

Christina has purposely elected not to attend school events, baseball games, and 

performances for the children so she can claim to the court that she has not seen them 

in many weeks, despite all of the children’s activities.  Mitchell expects the court will  

recognize Christina’s litigation tactics in light of the frequency and quantity of events.  

See Calendar of Events described on Exhibit C attached to Mitchell’s Exhibits filed 

concurrently herewith.  Mitchell’s temporary physical care of the children pending the 

hearing on October 1, 2019 is not preventing Christina from seeing or communicating 
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with the children.  Christina has asked for photos of the children at their activities but 

refused to attend any of them. 

Rather than address these issues with Mitchell and Christina’s family therapist, 

Nick Ponzo, Christina demanded that Mitchell file a motion.  Mitchell does not 

want to litigate.  Mitchell filed his motion on August 26, 2019 (one (1) judicial day 

after the children refused to return to her care).  He filed and submitted on the same 

day an ex parte application for an order shortening time.  The application was denied.  

Why?  Mitchell believes the court views the matter the same as Dr. Roy Lubit, who 

reviewed Donna Wilburn’s letter:  a children’s refusal to return to the physical care 

of a parent is NOT a crisis.  See Objection and Notice filed by Mitchell on September 

13, 2019.  Specifically, Dr. Lubit writes as follows: 

A crisis is a situation that if not solved right away will lead to 
serious and possibly irreversible harm. A child refusing to eat 
anything at all or attempting to hurt herself or attempting to run 
away or using drugs are reasonably considered crises.  

A child suffering significant mistreatment and being forced to 
continue visitation despite this is a crisis situation. Refusing to 
see a parent indicates there is a problem. It is not a crisis. There 
is extensive research showing that exposing a child to 
mistreatment is very destructive to the child’s short- and long-
term functioning. I am not aware of scientific evidence that 
allowing parental alienation to continue does even a fraction of 
the harm that occurs from exposing a child to mistreatment. The 
alleged research studies I have seen that claiming that parental 
alienation causes long term problems, are deeply flawed and 
unscientific. 
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Christina did not address Mitchell’s motion.  She filed a separate motion for 

contempt.  Christina wants to punish Mitchell.  Mitchell does not deserve punishment.  

Rather than Christina seeking punishment or harm to Mitchell, shouldn’t Christina be 

more concerned about the children’s wellbeing?  He is not responsible for Christina 

fighting Mia.  He did not cancel Mia’s music lessons or threaten Ethan’s baseball 

coach.  With her motion, Christina requested that the matter be heard on an order 

shortening time and for an immediate “pick up” order.  The court denied her requests 

and set the matter to be heard on October 1, 2019.  Again, Mitchell believes the matter 

is not a crisis.  The children are doing well and are insulated from the current litigation.     

Christina threatened Ethan’s baseball coach when Ethan refused to allow 

Christina’s father to pick him up at practice.   The coach specifically informed 

Christina that he was required to contact Child Protective Services.  Christina 

responded that it was not necessary to contact CPS since the issue was a “police 

matter.”   The Metropolitan Police Department interviewed both Mia and Ethan on 

August 23, 2019.  The police officers made it very clear that Mitchell was not 

withholding the children.    

Christina initially claims that Mitchell’s concerns of domestic violence had no 

merit because no report was filed with CPS.  Reports were made, but CPS did not act.  

Now, Christina claims the reports should have occurred earlier.  Christina also argues 

that CPS did not open a file (so she did nothing wrong).   The fact that a parent and 

child physically fight may not be the type of “abuse” investigated by CPS.   For the 
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record, Mitchell is not asking CPS to intervene.  Neither Mitchell nor Amy filed the 

reports.  To Mitchell’s knowledge, a CPS report was filed on August 14, 2019 and 

August 22, 2019.  The persons who made the reports communicated to Mitchell that 

CPS intake-personnel stated that they knew “Christina Calderon,” which may be the 

reason CPS did not intervene. 

Contempt: 

"Generally, an order for civil contempt must be grounded upon one's 

disobedience of an order that spells out 'the details of compliance in clear, specific 

and unambiguous terms so that such person will readily know exactly what duties or 

obligations are imposed on him.'" Southwest Gas Corp. v. Flintkote Co., 99 Nev. 127, 

131, 659 P.2d 861, 864 (1983) (quoting Ex parte Slavin, 412 S.W.2d 43, 44 (Tex.

1967)). "[A] sanction for '[c]ivil contempt is characterized by the court's desire to ... 

compensate the contemnor's adversary for the injuries which result from the 

noncompliance."' Albanese, 112 Nev. at 856,919 P.2d at 1071 (citing In re Crystal 

Palace Gambling Hall, Inc., 817 F.2d 1361 (9th Cir.1987) (citations omitted)). 

"However, an award to an opposing party is limited to that party's actual loss." United 

States v. United Mine Workers of America, 330 U.S. 258,304, 67 S.Ct. 677, 701, 91 

L.Ed. 884 (1947); Shuffler v. Heritage Bank, 720 F.2d 1141 (9th Cir.1983); Falstaff,

702 F.2d at 779. 

The parties’ parenting plan requires the following: 
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L. Mutual Behavioral Order

11. Child custody exchanges shall be done in a civil, law abiding manner and
reasonably close to the times specified by the Court or any agreement of the
parties.

12. The parties shall continue to use the "honk and seatbelt" rule which
specifically states that the party facilitating the custodial exchanges shall
provide the transportation for the exchanges, using the "honk and seatbelt"
rule, i.e. the party does not leave his or her vehicle, but stops the car, taps the
horn once, and the children will go from house to car, or car to house.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the party facilitating the custodial exchange
may exit his or her vehicle to open a car door, trunk, or otherwise to assist the
children with their personal belongings.

15. There shall be no threats of any kind, including threats of violence or harm,
made to the other party, either party's children, or to any family member,
relative, friend, and/or significant other (if any) of the other party. Each party
shall also advise his or her family, relatives, friends, and significant others (if
any) to not make any such threats, including threats of violence or harm to the
other party, or to any family member, relative, friend and/or significant other (if
any) of the other.

Mitchell and Amy were present for the exchange on August 23, 2019.  Mitchell 

encouraged the children to return to Christina’s care.  Christina was picking the 

children up from Mitchell’s home.  She was the party designated to facilitate the 

exchange.  Christina violated the court’s order by not staying in her car and using the 

“Honk and Seatbelt Rule”.  Mitchell did not make any threats of any kind to 

Christina.  Amy recorded the communication between Christina and Mia.  Christina 

was aware of the recording (because she was also recording which is typical for her).  

A transcript of the in-person meeting was prepared and filed with the court on 

September 6, 2019 with the Declaration of Amy who made the audio recording.  The 

court should take note of the following exchanges in the transcript:    
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!

Page 7 (lines 12-25) of Transcript (Attached to Amy Stipp’s Declaration). 

!

Page 8 (Lines 1-5) of Transcript (Attached to Amy Stipp’s Declaration).  The in-

person meeting with Christina, Mitchell, and Amy at Mitchell’s home after Mia spoke 
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with Christina was also recorded and transcribed.  The transcript was filed with the 

court on September 6, 2019 with Mitchell’s Declaration.  The court should take note 

of the following additional threats by Christina (if Mitchell did not force Mia into 

Christina’s automobile):   

!

Page 2 (lines 4-9) of Transcript (Attached to Mitchell Stipp’s Declaration). 

!

Page 3 (lines 12-20) of Transcript (Attached to Mitchell Stipp’s Declaration).  Mia 

simply asked to take the week off.  Mia stated very clearly to Christina the 
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following: 

!

Page 2 (lines 16-25) of Transcript (Attached to Amy Stipp’s Declaration). 

Christina made the circumstances worse by threatening to call the police, 

actually calling the police, cancelling Mia’s music lessons on the following Monday, 

and withdrawing Mia from school the following week. Ethan communicated his 

preference to Christina’s father who appeared at Ethan’s baseball game, Ethan’s coach 

and Amy.  Ethan’s baseball coach released Ethan to Amy, which was Ethan’s 

preference.  Amy asked Ethan to go speak to his grandfather before they left the 

practice.  Ethan walked over to his grandfather, gave him a hug and told him that he 

loved him.  The interaction was very pleasant.  Regardless of the dispute, both Mia 

and Ethan have communicated with their grandfather and other family members of 

Christina via text messages since August 23, 2019. 
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Mitchell did not show Ethan the text messages among the parties and 

Ethan’s baseball coach.  However, Ethan was aware that there was a dispute and his 

baseball coach was involved because of Christina.  Ethan was also aware the police 

were called to Mitchell’s home.  Like Mia, Christina withdrew Ethan from school.  

Mitchell is shocked that Christina claims she has no idea why Ethan does not want to 

return to her care.        

Given the physical violence and Christina’s other bad acts, Mitchell’s decision 

to respect the preference of the children was in their best interest.  Mitchell is not 

aware of any statute, case, rule, or procedure that requires Mitchell physically to force 

the children into Christina’s care.  Since Christina would not work with Mitchell, he 

filed a motion and also asked the court to hear the matter on an order shortening time.  

Since that time, Mitchell has offered Christina opportunities to spend time with the 

children.  He also reached out to Christina’s family therapist, Nick Ponzo, to help.  

Christina’s attorney stipulated to Mr. Ponzo’s involvement, but Christina refused to 

consent.   Christina also had independent opportunities to see the children, which she 

has elected to forego despite notice and availability to attend.  Mitchell even waived 

his vacation time with the children for the year (two (2) weeks).  It makes no sense to 

resume normal visitation unless Christina is willing to address her behavior.   

Teenage Discretion: 

The Nevada Supreme Court has considered the concept of teenage discretion in 

the Harrison v. Harrison, 132 Nev., Advance Opinion 56 (Case No. 66157, Filed July 
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28, 2016).  The Harrison case is instructive of the parameters of teenage discretion that 

the Nevada Supreme Court finds acceptable.  Mitchell is not asking for more.  If the 

court is unwilling to grant Mitchell’s request without an evidentiary hearing because it 

views the matter as a request to change custody, Mitchell requests a brief one be 

scheduled.  Adequate cause for an evidentiary hearing has been shown by Mitchell 

pursuant to Rooney v. Rooney, 853 P.2d 123 (1993).  Domestic violence between a 

parent and a child satisfies the standards in Rooney.   

Mitchell understands that the Harrison case concerned a stipulation by the 

parties as to teenage discretion.  That fact does not make the case inapplicable.  The 

case does not stand for the proposition that the exercise of teenage discretion is only 

permitted if the parents agree.  Again, Mitchell is not requesting that custody be 

changed.  He simply wants the children to have the legal right to remove themselves 

from Christina’s care when they do not feel safe.  When would this occur?  Mitchell 

expects the children would want to leave if a dispute rose to the level of physical 

violence (like in May and again in August of 2019).  The children should not be forced 

to remain with Christina if her preferred method of punishment is physically to fight 

the children. 

C. Conclusion

Mitchell respectfully requests the following relief: 

1. Denial of the relief requested by Plaintiff, Christina Calderon.

18 AA000515



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28

2. FMC interview the parties’ children to determine their wishes and capacity to

exercise teenage discretion with respect to the timeshare spent with each

party.

3. The parties participate in mediation at FMC to determine the parameters of

teenage discretion.

4. An order permitting the children to exercise teenage discretion with respect

to the timeshare with each party within the confines of joint physical custody.

5. If the court will not grant Mitchell’s request without an evidentiary hearing,

then the court should schedule the matter for a brief evidentiary hearing.

DATED this 24th day of September, 2019. 

LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP 

/s/ Mitchell Stipp, Esq. 
MITCHELL STIPP, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 7531  
LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP 
10120 W. Flamingo Rd., Suite 4-124  
Las Vegas, Nevada 89147 
Telephone: 702.602.1242  
mstipp@stipplaw.com 

DECLARATION OF MITCHELL STIPP 

I hereby declare and state as follows: 

1. I am competent and willing to testify in a court of law as to the facts

contained in this reply (which are incorporated herein by this reference).
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2. I have personal knowledge of these facts, save those stated upon information

and/or belief, and as to those matters, I believe them to be true.

/s/ Mitchell Stipp  

Mitchell Stipp 

DECLARATION OF AMY STIPP 

I hereby declare and state as follows: 

1. I have been married to Mitchell Stipp for 11 years.  I have been Mia and

Ethan Stipp’s stepmother for 11 years.

2. I am competent and willing to testify in a court of law as to the facts

contained in this reply (which are incorporated herein by this reference).

3. I have personal knowledge of these facts, save those stated upon information

and/or belief, and as to those matters, I believe them to be true.

/s/ Amy Stipp

Amy Stipp 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on the 24th day of September, 2019, I filed the 

foregoing using the Court’s E-filing system, which provided notice to the e-service 

participants registered in this case. 

By:         /s/ Amy Hernandez 

__________________________________________ 
An employee of the Law Office of Mitchell Stipp
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MITCHELL D. STIPP, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 7531 
LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP 
10120 W. Flamingo Rd., Suite 4-124 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89147 
Telephone: 702.602.1242 
mstipp@stipplaw.com 
 
RADFORD J. SMITH, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 2791 
RADFORD J. SMITH, CHARTERED 
2470 St. Rose Parkway, Suite 206 
Henderson, Nevada 89074 
Telephone: 702.990.6448 
rsmith@radfordsmith.com 
Attorneys for Mitchell Stipp, Defendant 
 
 
 
 

IN THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT  
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CLARK 
 

FAMILY DIVISION 
 
 
CHRISTINA CALDERON, 
 
                         Plaintiff, 
 
v. 
 
MITCHELL STIPP, 
               
                         Defendant. 

 
Case No.:   D-08-389203-Z  
 
Dept. No.:  H 
 
 

STATUS REPORT 
 
 
 
 

 
 	

 
Defendant, Mitchell Stipp, as co-counsel of record, hereby files the above-

referenced Status Report.  This Status Report is based on the papers and pleadings on 

file in this case and the memorandum of points and authorities that follow. 

/// 

/// 

/// 

Case Number: D-08-389203-Z

Electronically Filed
10/7/2019 3:27 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Dated: October 7, 2019 

LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP    

/s/ Mitchell Stipp, Esq.      
MITCHELL STIPP, ESQ.      
Nevada Bar No. 7531       
LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP    
10120 W. Flamingo Rd., Suite 4-124    
Las Vegas, Nevada 89147      
Telephone: 702.602.1242      
mstipp@stipplaw.com 
Attorneys for Defendant      
     
          

 MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

 The parties were before the court on October 1, 2019.  At the hearing, the court 

granted Mitchell’s request to have the minor children, Mia and Ethan Stipp, interviewed 

by FMC.  The interview is scheduled for October 23, 2019.  The court also ordered 

Mitchell to facilitate an exchange on October 4, 2019 and to use his “best efforts” to 

accomplish the same.   The court was very clear:  Mitchell was not required to use 

physical force to accomplish the exchange.   

Based on the stipulation of the parties, the court ordered the parties to work with 

Nick Ponzo, who has agreed to provide family therapy to reunite Christina with the 

children.  Mr. Ponzo was previously selected by Christina as her family therapist with 

the children.  Mr. Ponzo worked with Christina and the children from 2015-2018.     

Mitchell scheduled an appointment with Mr. Ponzo immediately after the hearing 

for his soonest available time (which was at 11:30 a.m. on Friday, October 4, 2019).   

The goal was to get Mr. Ponzo’s advice on the best way to transition the children and to 
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come up with a preliminary plan for treatment.  Mitchell met with Mr. Ponzo for more 

than three (3) hours on October 4, 2019.   Christina separately scheduled her own 

appointment for 12:45 p.m. on the same day.  Christina and Mitchell met with Mr. Ponzo 

during a portion of Christina’s appointment. 

 The court should be aware that Donna Wilburn reached out to Mr. Ponzo after the 

hearing on October 1, 2019.  She wants to provide reunification therapy to Christina and 

Mia.   Ms. Wilburn attended the hearing on October 1, 2019.  At the hearing, Christina 

stipulated to participate in family therapy with Mr. Ponzo.   However, Christina now 

refuses to participate based on the guidance of Ms. Wilburn.  Instead, Christina has 

elected to defer to Ms. Wilburn, who cannot evaluate or treat the children, to resolve the 

issues with the children.  While Mitchell cannot prevent Christina from seeking the 

advice of Ms. Wilburn, Ms. Wilburn’s actions in the case are unethical, inappropriate 

and undermine any chance of therapy with Mr. Ponzo.      

 Mitchell has utilized his best efforts as required by the court to facilitate a 

timeshare exchange on Friday, October 4, 2019.  Neither child wants to return to 

Christina’s physical care.  Mitchell has asked Christina to trust the process and 

consider the recommendations of Mr. Ponzo.  Christina refuses.   

Nick Ponzo has not met with the children yet.  Mr. Ponzo offered to meet over 

the weekend.  Christina rebuffed his offer.  Instead, Christina attempted to pick up Mia 

from Mitchell’s home at 6pm on Friday, October 4, 2019 and was rejected by Mia.  

Mitchell and his wife, Amy, walked Mia out to Christina’s automobile.  Christina asked 
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Mitchell and Amy to return to the inside of their home and allow her to speak with Mia 

alone.   Mitchell and Amy agreed.  A short time later, Mia returned to the inside of 

Mitchell’s home, and Christina drove away in her automobile.   Christina attempted to 

pick up Ethan from baseball practice at 8:00 p.m. on Friday, October 4, 2019 and was 

similarly rejected.  Mitchell agreed to drop off Ethan’s personal belongings after 

baseball practice.  After practice, and in front of the other players and parents, Christina 

asked Mitchell to punish Ethan by refusing his participation in the tournament over the 

weekend.  When Mitchell refused, Christina asked Mitchell to return to his vehicle so 

she could speak to Ethan alone.  Mitchell agreed and returned to his vehicle.  After a 

few minutes, Ethan got into Mitchell’s car, and Christina drove away.   

Mitchell placed a telephone call to Christina on Thursday, October 3, 2019 so the 

children could speak to Christina a day before the planned transition.  She did not answer 

or return the call.  Mitchell encouraged the children to return to Christina’s care after the 

hearing on October 1, 2019.  He even packed a portion of Mia’s personal items.  While 

alone with the children, Christina had an opportunity physically to force the children 

into her automobile on October 4, 2019.  Thankfully, she elected not to do the same.  

Christina has asked Mitchell to punish the children for not returning to her care.  Rather 

than punish the children, Mitchell wants Christina to work with Nick to resolve their 

issues.  Mitchell would like to avoid litigation (especially any further motion practice 

before the next hearing).  However, Christina has communicated to Mitchell that she 

intends to file another motion.  
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Dated: October 7, 2019 

LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP    

/s/ Mitchell Stipp, Esq.      
MITCHELL STIPP, ESQ.      
Nevada Bar No. 7531       
LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP    
10120 W. Flamingo Rd., Suite 4-124    
Las Vegas, Nevada 89147      
Telephone: 702.602.1242      
mstipp@stipplaw.com 

 

DECLARATION OF MITCHELL STIPP 

I hereby declare and state as follows: 

1. I am competent and willing to testify in a court of law as to the facts contained in 

this Status Report (which are incorporated herein by this reference). 

2. I have personal knowledge of these facts, save those stated upon information 

and/or belief, and as to those matters, I believe them to be true. 

/s/ Mitchell Stipp   

Mitchell Stipp 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that on the 7th day of October, 2019, I filed the foregoing 

using the Court’s E-filing system, which provided notice to the e-service participants 

registered in this case. 

 

 By:         /s/ Amy Hernandez 

  __________________________________________ 
  An employee of the Law Office of Mitchell Stipp 
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DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

**** 

 

In the Matter of the Joint Petition for 

Divorce of:  

Mitchell David Stipp and Christina 

Calderon Stipp 

Case No.: D-08-389203-Z 

  

Department H 
 

 

 

NOTICE OF HEARING 

 

 

      Please be advised that the Christina Calderon's Emergency Motion for Temporary 

Primary Physical Custody and Request for Writ of Attachment Order and Attorneys Fees in 

the above-entitled matter is set for hearing as follows:  

Date:  November 19, 2019 

Time:  10:00 AM 

Location: RJC Courtroom 03G 

   Regional Justice Center 

   200 Lewis Ave. 

   Las Vegas, NV 89101 

 

NOTE: Under NEFCR 9(d), if a party is not receiving electronic service through the 

Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System, the movant requesting a 

hearing must serve this notice on the party by traditional means. 

 

 STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CEO/Clerk of the Court 

 

 

By: 

 

 

/s/ Carmelo Coscolluela 

 Deputy Clerk of the Court 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 

I hereby certify that pursuant to Rule 9(b) of the Nevada Electronic Filing and Conversion 

Rules a copy of this Notice of Hearing was electronically served to all registered users on 

this case in the Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System. 

 

 

By: /s/ Carmelo Coscolluela 

 Deputy Clerk of the Court 
 

Case Number: D-08-389203-Z

Electronically Filed
10/9/2019 4:05 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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MITCHELL D. STIPP, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 7531 
LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP 
10120 W. Flamingo Rd., Suite 4-124 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89147 
Telephone: 702.602.1242 
mstipp@stipplaw.com 
 
RADFORD J. SMITH, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 2791 
RADFORD J. SMITH, CHARTERED 
2470 St. Rose Parkway, Suite 206 
Henderson, Nevada 89074 
Telephone: 702.990.6448 
rsmith@radfordsmith.com 
Attorneys for Mitchell Stipp, Defendant 
 
 
 
 

IN THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT  
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CLARK 
 

FAMILY DIVISION 
 
 
CHRISTINA CALDERON, 
 
                         Plaintiff, 
 
v. 
 
MITCHELL STIPP, 
               
                         Defendant. 

 
Case No.:   D-08-389203-Z  
 
Dept. No.:  H 
 
 

OPPOSITION TO EX PARTE 
APPLICATION FOR ORDER 

SHORTENING TIME ON 
PLAINTIFF’S MOTION FOR 

PRIMARY PHYSICAL CUSTODY 
 
 
 
 

 
 	

 
Defendant, Mitchell Stipp, as co-counsel of record, hereby files the above-

referenced opposition.  This opposition is based on the papers and pleadings on file in 

this case and the memorandum of points and authorities that follow. 

/// 

Case Number: D-08-389203-Z

Electronically Filed
10/10/2019 1:37 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Dated: October 10, 2019 

LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP    

/s/ Mitchell Stipp, Esq.      
MITCHELL STIPP, ESQ.      
Nevada Bar No. 7531       
LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP    
10120 W. Flamingo Rd., Suite 4-124    
Las Vegas, Nevada 89147      
Telephone: 702.602.1242      
mstipp@stipplaw.com 
Attorneys for Defendant      
     
          

 MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

 The ex parte application for an order shortening time on the motion for primary 

physical custody filed by Christina Calderon (“Christina”) should be denied.  Mitchell 

has no problem addressing the motion to change custody if heard on the scheduled return 

date of November 12, 2019.  

Mitchell filed a Status Report on October 7, 2019.  He incorporates by reference 

that filing.  As stated in the Status Report, Christina refuses to participate in family 

therapy with Nick Ponzo (her family therapist with the children from 2015-2018).  

As the court is aware, Christina stipulated to participate in family therapy with Mr. 

Ponzo at the hearing on October 1, 2019.   To be clear, Mitchell has consistently asked 

Christina to work with Mr. Ponzo and the children since August 29, 2019 to avoid 

litigation.  See Exhibit A to Mitchell’s Exhibits.  Despite meeting with Mr. Ponzo on 

October 4, 2019, Christina wants to follow the reunification process recommended by 

Christina’s personal therapist/parent coach, Donna Wilburn.  Unfortunately, Mr. Ponzo, 
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who knows and has worked with Christina and the children for three (3) years does not 

believe Ms. Wilburn’s forced reunification is in the children’s best interest.     

Christina could have objected at the hearing to therapy with Mr. Ponzo.  The 

parties could have stipulated, or the court could have appointed, a provider other than 

Mr. Ponzo, if Christina did not want to work with him.  However, Christina stipulated 

to work with Mr. Ponzo.  Mitchell does not understand why Christina will not work 

with her own family therapist and follow his recommendations.  The failure to 

participate in family therapy with Mr. Ponzo is the reason progress has not been made 

on resolving the issues before the court.    

Since Mr. Ponzo cannot detail the problems with the actions of Ms. Wilburn at 

the request of Christina and forced reunification for purposes of the court because of his 

role as Christina’s family therapist, Mitchell has consulted with Dr. Roy Lubit.  In his 

letter dated October 10, 2019, Dr. Lubit details the significant problems with the 

actions/recommendations of Ms. Wilburn and separately with forced reunification.  See 

Exhibit B attached to Mitchell’s Exhibits.   

 Christina’s actions are bad faith.  Mitchell reached out to Christina’s attorney on 

October 6, 2019 to avoid motion practice.  See Exhibit C of Mitchell’s Exhibits.   Mr. 

Ponzo could have started working with the family as early as October 4, 2019.  Despite 

requests by Mitchell, Christina refuses to schedule another appointment with Mr. Ponzo.    

The court should allow the child interviews to proceed on October 23, 2019.  At the 

status check on November 12, 2019, the court can decide whether to schedule an 
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evidentiary hearing based on the papers and pleadings before it.   For now, though, 

Christina’s request for an order shortening time should be denied.   If denied, Mitchell 

will address Christina’s motion for primary custody in the normal course. 

  

Dated: October 10, 2019 

LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP    

/s/ Mitchell Stipp, Esq.      
MITCHELL STIPP, ESQ.      
Nevada Bar No. 7531       
LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP    
10120 W. Flamingo Rd., Suite 4-124    
Las Vegas, Nevada 89147      
Telephone: 702.602.1242      
mstipp@stipplaw.com 

 

DECLARATION OF MITCHELL STIPP 

I hereby declare and state as follows: 

1. I am competent and willing to testify in a court of law as to the facts contained in 

this opposition (which are incorporated herein by this reference). 

2. I have personal knowledge of these facts, save those stated upon information 

and/or belief, and as to those matters, I believe them to be true. 

/s/ Mitchell Stipp   

Mitchell Stipp 

/// 

/// 

/// 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that on the 10th day of October, 2019, I filed the foregoing 

using the Court’s E-filing system, which provided notice to the e-service participants 

registered in this case. 

 

 By:         /s/ Amy Hernandez 

  __________________________________________ 
  An employee of the Law Office of Mitchell Stipp 
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MITCHELL D. STIPP, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 7531 
LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP 
10120 W. Flamingo Rd., Suite 4-124 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89147 
Telephone: 702.602.1242 
mstipp@stipplaw.com 
 
RADFORD J. SMITH, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 2791 
RADFORD J. SMITH, CHARTERED 
2470 St. Rose Parkway, Suite 206 
Henderson, Nevada 89074 
Telephone: 702.990.6448 
rsmith@radfordsmith.com 
Attorneys for Mitchell Stipp, Defendant 
 
 
 
 

IN THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT  
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CLARK 
 

FAMILY DIVISION 
 
 
CHRISTINA CALDERON, 
 
                         Plaintiff, 
 
v. 
 
MITCHELL STIPP, 
               
                         Defendant. 

 
Case No.:   D-08-389203-Z  
 
Dept. No.:  H 
 
 

 
EXHIBITS IN SUPPORT OF 

DEFENDANT’S 
OPPOSITION TO EX PARTE 
APPLICATION FOR ORDER 

SHORTENING TIME ON 
PLAINTIFF’S MOTION FOR 

PRIMARY PHYSICAL CUSTODY 
 
 
 
 

 
 	

 
Defendant, Mitchell Stipp, hereby files the above-referenced exhibits (which are 

identified below): 

/// 

Case Number: D-08-389203-Z

Electronically Filed
10/10/2019 2:18 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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EXHIBIT A: Email to Nick Ponzo on August 29, 2019. 

 

EXHIBIT B: Letter from Dr. Roy Lubit dated October 10, 2019 (with article by 

Stephanie Dallam and Joyanna L. Silberg (2016), Recommended 

treatments for “parental alienation syndrome” (PAS) may cause 

children foreseeable and lasting psychological harm, Journal of 

Child Custody, 13:2-3, 134-143, DOI: 

10.1080/15379418.2016.12199). 

 

EXHIBIT C: Email to Valerie Fujii dated October 6, 2019. 

 

LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP    

/s/ Mitchell Stipp, Esq.      
MITCHELL STIPP, ESQ.      
Nevada Bar No. 7531       
LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP    
10120 W. Flamingo Rd., Suite 4-124    
Las Vegas, Nevada 89147      
Telephone: 702.602.1242      
mstipp@stipplaw.com      
     
          

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that on the 10th day of October, 2019, I filed the foregoing 

using the Court’s E-filing system, which provided notice to the e-service participants 

registered in this case. 

 By:         /s/ Amy Hernandez 

  __________________________________________ 
  An employee of the Law Office of Mitchell Stipp 
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To File.

Mitchell Stipp

Law Office of Mitchell Stipp
T: 702.602.1242 | M: 702.378.1907
E: mstipp@stipplaw.com | www.stipplaw.com

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Mitchell Stipp <mstipp@stipplaw.com>
Date: Fri, Aug 30, 2019 at 10:33 AM
Subject: Re: Calderon v. Stipp
To: Nicolas Ponzo <nponzo1@hotmail.com>

Thank you for your reply.

I hope Christina will agree to allow you to help.  If not, I understand.  Christina's attorney emailed
me late yesterday and withdrew her consent to your involvement.  I assume your call to her
prompted the email, but it is not clear.  I think she will listen to you.  Her advice from her lawyer
seems terrible.

Let me know if you hear anything from Christina.

Mitchell Stipp

Law Office of Mitchell Stipp
T: 702.602.1242 | M: 702.378.1907
E: mstipp@stipplaw.com | www.stipplaw.com

On Fri, Aug 30, 2019 at 10:28 AM Nicolas Ponzo <nponzo1@hotmail.com> wrote:
Hello,

 After reviewing your email I was not sure if there is some determination or agreement that I
AA000616

https://www.stipplaw.com
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have a role in this matter.  If so, I suppose it has not been clarified yet what my role may be. I
sent a message to Christina to let her know that you sent me an email with some attachments
and to inquire with her what her understanding of my role could be. 
I received a message back that she will be getting in touch with me to advise me of in what
capacity or form I may be of some assistance. 

Nicolas Ponzo, BA (Phil.), BA (Psych.),
MSW (Clin.), LCSW, M.ED (Psych.)
Diplomate, DCSW, NASW
Psychotherapy , Consulting

10161 Park Run Drive,
Suite 150,
Las Vegas, Nevada, 89145

Tel. 702.248.1169
Fax 702.515.7413
nicolasponzo.com
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 1 

                           Roy Lubit MD, Ph.D.                                  
165 West End Ave 3K                                                                                Board Certifications 
New York, NY 10023                                                                              Psychiatry and Neurology                                                                                                                                                   
                Child & Adolescent Psychiatry 
roylubit@rcn.com                                                                                              Forensic Psychiatry 
917-846-7829                                                                                                      

 
October 10, 2019 

 
 

Background Information 
 
I was initially asked by Mr. Stipp to review a letter written by Donna Wilburn dated September 
11, 2019.  Since I wrote my letter to him dated September 13, 2019, Mr. Stipp informed me that 
the court ordered the children to be interviewed and for the parties to participate in therapy with 
the hope of resolving the issues before the court.   I understand from Mr. Stipp that this family 
therapist previously provided services to the mother and children and was approved by the 
mother at the hearing.  According to Mr. Stipp, after the hearing, Ms. Wilburn contacted the 
family therapist to provide her own therapeutic services, which I understand is forced 
reunification.  Ms. Wilburn has not evaluated or treated the children.  Other than the foregoing, 
at my request, he told me nothing further about the case. 
 
 
Addendum to Letter dated September 13, 2019  
 
Ms. Wilburn’s actions are concerning to me in various ways.  One problem is that according to 
APA guidelines, it is unethical to play a dual role as forensic expert and psychotherapist.  
Second, Ms. Wilbur is trying to undermine the court’s instructions and services offered by the 
family therapist.  This action, if true, is another example of highly problematic behavior by Ms. 
Wilburn and shows poor judgment.  Forced reunification without any consideration of the 
children's views will, in most cases, be quite harmful both to the children’s psychological 
development and the future of mother’s relationships with her children.   
 
A central theme of medical philosophy is Primum non nocere "first, to do no harm."  Forced 
reunification, without hearing the children’s version of events, without adequately preparing the 
children for contact, and with rapid reintroduction regardless of their fears will, to a reasonable 
degree of medical certainty, cause marked and enduring harm.  Even if the issue actually is 
parental alienation and not mistreatment by mother, rapid, forced reunification would do more 
harm than good.   
 
If we assume the issue is entirely parental alienation, and that mother is a warm, thoughtful, 
patient, and supportive parent who has not done anything to distress the children, it would still be 
inappropriate to engage in rapid forced desensitization.  To ignore the children’s statements is 
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 2 

invalidation, and invalidation is known to be very harmful.  Standard treatment for phobias is 
progressive desensitization, not forcing the individual into the feared situation.  If a child was 
frightened of dogs, no reasonable therapist would force the child, despite her panic, to 
immediately play with a dog.  A gradual process of desensitization would be used beginning with 
thinking about contact, looking at dogs from a distance, seeing others play with dogs, etc. 
 
I have not seen data that the issue in this family is definitely parental alienation.  Scientific 
research has clearly shown that when children reject a parent, it is far more likely to be poor 
parenting than parental alienation.  To force children back into a situation in which they are 
treated poorly and understandably very uncomfortable, would likely do serious, enduring 
psychological harm.  Not only would the children be forced back into mistreatment, but they 
would be shown a very negative picture of the world and of authority figures, undermining their 
respect for authority.  
 
Rapid forced reunification is likely to involve attempts to change the children’s opinion by 
telling the children that they have false beliefs about their mother and that their father 
manipulated them to turn against their mother.  In other words, the therapist and rejected parent 
would be involved in parental alienation behaviors, invalidation and brain washing, just what 
they believe is wrong to do. 
 
Dallam and Silberg (2016) in Journal of Child Custody write “The coercive and punitive 
‘therapies’ recommended for children diagnosed with parental alienation constitute an ethical 
minefield and are especially inappropriate when used on children who have already been 
traumatized. Forced reunification against a child’s will and without taking into consideration the 
child’s point of view and emotional wellbeing, can be expected to reinforce a sense of 
helplessness and powerlessness in an already vulnerable child. Such ‘treatment’ can be expected 
to do more harm than good, and rather than helping their well-being, could cause lasting 
psychological harm, particularly when imposed upon children who claim the parent they are 
being forced to reunify with is abusive.” 
 
If we assume that forced reunification actually worked, rather than backfired, and that we were 
sure the issue is entirely parental alienation, the benefit to harm ratio would be such that it should 
never be used.  To use a procedure that has not been shown to work, and that based on our 
knowledge of children will do far more harm than good, is not simply unethical but malpractice. 
The most important aspect of reunification is generally the rejected parent acknowledging 
problematic behavior rather than externalizing blame onto the other parent and invalidating the 
children, having therapeutic visitation and learning to be a better parent. It is not standard 
behavior for a parent to refuse the advice of the family therapist who understands the dynamics 
of the family and was approved for therapy by the court and insist on immediate, major 
reunification despite the children’s feelings. 

 

 
___________________ 
Roy Lubit MD, Ph.D. 
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Recommended treatments for “parental alienation 
syndrome” (PAS) may cause children foreseeable 
and lasting psychological harm 
Stephanie Dallama and Joyanna L. Silberga,b 

aLeadership Council on Child Abuse and Interpersonal Violence, Baltimore, Maryland, USA; bSheppard 
Pratt Health System, Baltimore, Maryland, USA  

ABSTRACT 
The coercive and punitive “therapies” recommended for 
children diagnosed with parental alienation constitute an 
ethical minefield and are especially inappropriate when used 
on children who have already been traumatized. Forced 
reunification against a child’s will and without taking into 
consideration the child’s point of view and emotional well- 
being, can be expected to reinforce a sense of helplessness and 
powerlessness in an already vulnerable child. Such “treatment” 
can be expected to do more harm than good, and rather than 
helping their well-being, could cause lasting psychological 
harm, particularly when imposed upon children who claim the 
parent they are being forced to reunify with is abusive. 

KEYWORDS  
Child abuse; parental 
alienation; reunification; 
treatment  

We are in agreement with the broad critiques of parental alienation theory as 
offered by O’Donohue, Benuto, and Bennett (2016) and Clemente and 
Padilla-Racero (2016) in this issue, and many of the researchers that they cite. 
“Parental alienation syndrome” (PAS) criteria are vague and subjective, 
nondiagnostic, and inconsistent with good child-centered evaluation. As a 
result, PAS proponents frequently draw conclusions based on pure specu-
lation, correlation without demonstrated causation, and inference without 
any foundation other than their own beliefs about how children should think 
and behave during a stressful divorce. Current proponents of parental 
alienation, including Bernet (2008) and Warshak (2015), have attempted to 
circumvent widespread condemnation of PAS by replacing it with parental 
alienation disorder (PAD) or simply parental alienation. While they have 
attempted to imbue their viewpoints with the mantle of science, the criteria 
used to determine alienation are the same ones offered by Gardner and thus 
the same criticisms of Gardner’s theory of PAS are applicable as noted in the 
Commentaries in this issue noted above as well as by others (e.g., Houchin, 
Ranseen, Hash, & Bartnicki, 2012; Meier, 2013; Saini, Johnston, Fidler, & Bala, 
2016). In rejecting PAD for inclusion in the latest revision of the Diagnostic 

CONTACT Stephanie Dallam sjscout@gmail.com Leadership Council on Child Abuse and Interpersonal 
Violence, P.O. Box 6815, 6501 N. Charles St., Baltimore, MD 21204.  
© 2016 Taylor & Francis 
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and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders (DSM), Dr. Darrel Regier, vice 
chair of the DSM task force, stated, “It’s a relationship problem—parent–child 
or parent–parent. Relationship problems per se are not mental disorders.” The 
Board of Trustees would not even consider putting it in a section for disorders 
needing further research (Thomas & Richardson, 2015, p. 33). Our view is 
that the ongoing harm to children that this faulty concept has engendered 
is significant. In this Comment, we examine some of the diagnostic and treat-
ment implications derived from PAS that can harm children and families. 

The potential for PAS diagnoses to harm children is not surprising given the 
concept’s origin. As noted in the Commentaries, PAS was invented by Richard 
Gardner based on his clinical impressions of cases he believed involved false 
allegations of child sexual abuse (Gardner, 1985). At the time, Gardner was 
a frequent expert witness, most often on behalf of fathers accused of molesting 
their children (Sherman, 1993). Thus, PAS was first described to counter sex-
ual abuse allegations in custody litigation. Without citing any evidence, 
Gardner (1987) claimed that PAS is responsible for most accusations of child 
sexual abuse that are raised during custody disputes, and that in his experience 
“in custody litigation … the vast majority of children who profess sexual abuse 
are fabricators” (p. 274). As a result, PAS has frequently been introduced into 
custody cases by parents whose child has rejected them in order to discredit 
allegations of family violence or abuse (Bruch, 2001). Actual research, on 
the other hand, has consistently shown that sexual abuse allegations are not 
common during custody litigation and when thoroughly investigated, are 
often no more likely to be false than allegations raised at other points in time 
(see Dallam & Silberg, 2006 for a review). Yet, even when abuse claims were 
valid, Gardner appeared to believe that PAS was more detrimental than sexu-
ally abusing a child. For example, Gardner (2000) considered PAS to be a form 
of emotional abuse that can lead to lifelong psychiatric disturbance in the 
child. Conversely, Gardner claimed that the determinant as to whether the sex-
ual abuse will be traumatic for a child “is the social attitude toward these 
encounters” (1992a, pp. 670–671) and that special care should be taken by 
the therapist to not alienate the child from the molesting parent (p. 537). 

Gardner’s theory of parental alienation was based on the assumption that if 
a child rejects their parent (usually the father) after allegations of abuse, the 
other parent (i.e., the mother) must have brainwashed the child. As Gardner 
(1992b) stated, “Children are not born with genes that program them to reject 
a father. Such hatred is environmentally induced, and the most likely person 
to have brought about the alienation is the mother” (p. 75). Thus, problems in 
the child’s relationship with the father were simply blamed on brainwashing 
by the mother. The recommended solution to remedy PAS involves coercive 
and punitive treatments for both the mother and the child along with switch-
ing custody to the rejected parent as noted by Clemente and Padilla-Racero 
(2016) in this issue. Although Gardner (2001) said that children may then 

JOURNAL OF CHILD CUSTODY 135 
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add their own contributions to the vilification of a parent, there is minimal 
indication in Gardner’s perspective that children can react to a parent based 
on their own experiences, feelings, and beliefs. Thus, the mental life of the 
child who is being diagnosed with PAS is largely ignored in Gardner’s 
theoretical analysis. 

Gardner’s theory of PAS has been difficult to overcome because he relied 
on popular gender and cultural myths (see Dallam & Silberg, 2006 for a 
review) and offered courts a simple explanation for very complex cases. 
One judge wrote that when she first read Gardner’s (1987) book The Parental 
Alienation Syndrome and the Differentiation Between Fabricated and Genuine 
Child Sex Abuse, she believed that “Dr. Gardner had just handed me the key to 
the mysteries of all my high-conflict family law custody cases … the magic of 
the theory was intoxicating” (Slabach, 2014, p. 8). One reason the theory 
seemed so comprehensible was that the definition of PAS includes its 
hypothesized etiological agents (i.e., a manipulative/alienating parent and a 
receptive child) (Kelly & Johnston, 2001). This renders Gardner’s theory of 
PAS unfalsifiable because it is tautological (i.e., true by definition). The child’s 
denial that such brainwashing has taken place and the mother’s attempts to 
obtain professional assistance in diagnosing, treating, and protecting the child, 
are then used by Gardner and proponents of his views as evidence of alien-
ation. Thus, Gardner’s theory works backward using circular reasoning to 
assume causation from an observation. As a result, Rotgers and Barrett 
(1996) cite PAS theory as a prime example of a nonscientific theory that 
engages in reverse logic. 

The rejected parent’s role in contact refusal 

As a theory, PAS is black and white with minimal attention given to family 
dynamics or child development. The alienating parent was painted by 
Gardner as pathological and completely to blame for the child’s position. 
The rejected parent in Gardner’s theory was totally blameless and the “true 
victim” (Gardner, 2002, p. 26). In actuality, when a child rejects a parent there 
is a wide range of possible explanations including normal developmental 
conflicts with a parent, separation anxiety with the preferred parent, abuse, 
or neglect, etc. (e.g., Faller, 1998; Garber, 1996). Moreover, research on the 
topic has found that rejected parents often have contributed to their situation. 
Huff (2015) surveyed 292 young adults (18–35 years old) who were between 
8 and 17 at the time their parents separated. He found that that violence and a 
perceived lack of warmth were significant predictors of contact refusal with a 
parent. The largest effect size for predicting contact refusal was for the degree 
to which participants reported being aligned with the other parent. At the 
same time, co-parental conflict and parents’ alienating behaviors had little 
to no direct contribution to contact refusal after controlling for the other 
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variables in the model. Huff’s study is of particular importance since alienat-
ing behaviors are the primary variable that alienation proponents claim causes 
contact refusal. His study found that participants were not influenced to reject 
a parent due to manipulation by the other parent; instead, they tended to align 
with the parent who exhibited the most caring behavior toward them. 

These findings are supported by prior studies looking at children’s rejection 
of a parent after divorce. Lampel (1996) studied 24 consecutively referred chil-
dren of parents in custody litigation. She found that the rejected parent’s 
demonstration of empathy was a better predictor of a child’s rejection than 
manipulation by the preferred parent. She concluded, “The complex family 
dynamics suggested by these studies are that a closed parent system, in which 
both parents are defensive and remain in conflict, led the child to align with 
the more problem solving, capable, and outgoing of the two parents” (p. 239). 
Johnston, Walters, and Olesen (2005) found that substantiated accounts of 
abuse significantly predicted parental rejection when controlling for a variety 
of other factors, including alienating behaviors by the other parent. 

Acceptance of PAS can result in failure to adequately investigate 
reports of abuse 

One of the biggest pitfalls of having children evaluated by someone trained 
in parental alienation theory is that the assumption of manipulation by the 
preferred parent means that the rejected parent is deemed by evaluators to 
be the only source of “credible” information; the preferred parent and child 
are not viewed as credible and thus their concerns are often ignored. This 
parent and the child often quickly realize that the evaluator does not believe 
them, is biased, and has their mind made up. This can lead to them shutting 
down and not providing information, or even exaggerating actual abuse to be 
more extreme in an attempt to get the evaluator to pay attention. 

Although proponents of parental alienation agree that substantiated abuse 
rules out a diagnosis of PAS, many custody evaluators appear predisposed to 
attribute abuse allegations to vindictiveness, rather than exploring whether 
there is a factual basis for the child’s disclosure or the protective parent’s con-
cerns (e.g., Saunders, Faller, & Tolman, 2011). In addition, as Johnston, 
Roseby, and Kuehnle (2009) pointed out, parental violence, abuse, and neglect 
range on a continuum from blatant acts to more subtle forms of emotional 
abuse, neglect, and a lack of empathy and concern for the child that may 
not be acknowledged, difficult to document, and unreported or dismissed 
by authorities. Even when abuse is formally investigated, it is frequently not 
substantiated as allegations of interpersonal violence can be very difficult to 
independently confirm, especially if the law enforcement or child protective 
services personnel also believe in the myth of PAS and, therefore, do not 
conduct their normal comprehensive investigations. 
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Parental alienation proponents, on the other hand, often assert that they 
can easily determine whether abuse has occurred, often with no formal evalu-
ation of the child or family (e.g., Childress, 2015). Once they make their deter-
mination, custody evaluators schooled in PAS theory were instructed by 
Gardner to ignore and aggressively contradict any abuse disclosures by a child 
they believe to be alienated. For example, Gardner (1999) wrote, “The court’s 
therapist must have a thick skin and be able to tolerate the shrieks and claims 
of impending maltreatment that PAS children often profess.… To take the 
allegations of maltreatment seriously, is a terrible disservice to PAS children” 
(pp. 201–202). Similarly, Warshak (2015) noted that children can be very 
convincing in their accounts of poor treatment at the hands of the rejected 
parent and, as a result, “[n]aive therapists who lack specialized knowledge 
and experience with alienation cases may inadvertently reinforce the 
children’s alienation by accepting their patients’ representations as accurate” 
(p. 246). Gardner (1999) even directed therapists to actively counter 
allegations of abuse if they believed them to be false. He stated, “[I]t is thera-
peutic to say, ‘That didn’t happen! So let’s go on and talk about real things, 
like your next visit with your father’” (p. 202). 

We find this position to be inherently dangerous, not only because it is dis-
respectful to children, but also because of the very real possibility of abused 
children being misdiagnosed as alienated and placed with their abuser. The 
ability for PAS and its offshoots to harm children was recognized by the 
National Council of Juvenile and Family Court Judges, a leading judicial body, 
in its published guidelines noting that PAS may divert attention away from 
the behaviors of an abusive parent by assuming that child’s attitudes toward 
that parent have no basis in reality (Dalton, Drozd, & Wong, 2006). 

Because of the difficulty in substantiating allegations of interpersonal 
violence in custody cases, the American Professional Society on the Abuse 
of Children (2013) recommends a comprehensive family evaluation by mental 
health professionals with expertise in interpersonal violence. Evaluators 
should conduct more than a single interview with children, rely upon multiple 
methods of data collection and, whenever feasible, a team approach should be 
used to mitigate individual bias. Even with such a careful investigation, 
finding insufficient evidence for a finding of abuse does not mean that 
“brainwashing” is the most likely alternative. It is very difficult to substantiate 
abuse particularly in young children and, as noted previously, parental 
rejection has many causes. 

Experimental and punitive treatments for PAS 

Both PAS and PAD are built on the assumption the relationship of an 
alienated child with the rejected parent will be irreparably damaged, unless 
drastic measures (custody transfer, isolation from the loved parent, and 
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deprogramming) are taken. These theories further assume that the child will 
suffer permanent psychological harm if they are not forced to see the rejected 
parent. Consequently, the recommendations of PAS advocates can endanger 
children by separating them from the parent with whom they are most 
bonded and attempting to force the child to accept the rejected, and possibly 
abusive, parent. 

Gardner (2001) claimed that children with PAS require an authoritarian 
and confrontational approach. As a result, treatment of children who diag-
nosed with parental alienation involves incarceration, threats, and/or special 
reunification “camps” where children are held against their will to be indoc-
trinated into rejecting the influence of the parent with whom the child is most 
bonded (see Gardner, 1999, 2000, 2001). Current treatments for alienation 
have not been empirically studied for efficacy and Johnston and Kelly 
(2004) described Gardner’s prescriptions for treating PAS “a license for 
tyranny” (p. 85). 

Recently a number of reunification “camps” to treat PAS have emerged (see 
Slabach, 2014; Warshak, 2010b). The operators of reunification “camps” often 
emphasize that these are not treatment programs but instead are “edu-
cational” in nature, thus avoiding scrutiny of regulating bodies (Houchin 
et al., 2012). Houchin et al. noted that these “educational” programs are a bur-
geoning industry that are making some professionals and lay people quite 
wealthy, but which have no empirical support other than the claims of those 
who run the programs. Many of these programs are run out of hotel rooms. 
Before agreeing to take the child, most of these “camps” require that the court 
sign special orders to prevent the preferred parent and child from having any 
contact (including phone, texts, e-mail or Facebook) for a period of at least 
90 days. These no contact orders require that the rejected parent be given 
sole legal custody, and that the preferred parent, along with the child’s other 
family and friends, are not allowed to know where the child is being held. 
The child’s cell phone is taken and all communications are restricted and 
monitored. The child may be threatened that if they make any attempt to 
contact their preferred parent, they both will be in trouble with the court, and 
that the 90-day period of no contact will start over again (e.g., Warshak, 2014). 

Isolating a child from everyone they are familiar with and attempting to 
force them to adopt a different view of a parent, especially by strangers 
who know little about the child’s actual experiences, can in and of itself be 
traumatic. Warshak (2010b) who runs Family Bridges, a reunification 
program for “alienated” children, wrote that that when children are court- 
ordered into Family Bridges and told they can have no further contact with 
their preferred parent, “It is not uncommon for children to react by scream-
ing, refusing to go, threatening to run away, sobbing hysterically, and, in one 
case, hyperventilating” (p. 61). At the same time, Warshak (2010a) claimed, 
“Despite their vehement protests, children and teens welcome the sense of 

JOURNAL OF CHILD CUSTODY 139 

AA000627



protection and control that comes when adults exert appropriate authority to 
keep children on the right track” (as cited by Warshak & Otis, 2010, p. 93) 
However, no peer reviewed research to support such claims has been published. 

Research refutes forced treatment for PAS 

Research refutes the assumption that a child’s bond with a preferred parent 
must be disrupted to safeguard the child’s relationship with the rejected 
parent. Instead, researchers have found that if a child’s rejection of parent 
is unwarranted, the child will usually reconcile with the parent on their 
own without any intervention (e.g, Johnston & Goldman, 2010; Johnston 
et al., 2009). Johnston et al. found that alignments with a preferred parent 
are usually time-limited. However, they noted if these cases are mishandled 
through attempting to force the child to change allegiances, they can contrib-
ute to the entrenched position in the child. Research by Johnston and Gold-
man found that adults who were forced into reunification with a rejected 
parent when they were a child had strong negative views and feelings about 
the experience. Based on their research, Johnston and Goldman suggested a 
“strategy of voluntary supportive counseling and/or backing off and allowing 
the youth to mature and time to heal the breach” (p. 113) instead of forcing 
adolescents to participate in counseling. They concluded that teenagers who 
feel empowered and have their autonomy respected are better able to distance 
themselves from the parental and family conflicts and consequently more 
likely to initiate meaningful contact with the rejected parent. Other writers 
who have looked at the issue argue that enforced treatment and custody rever-
sal are counterproductive, in that they will only serve to reinforce the child’s 
hatred for the rejected parent, and add stress to the already vulnerable child 
(e.g., Jaffe, Ashbourne, & Mamo, 2010; Johnston et al., 2009). 

Silberg, Dallam, and Samson (2013) documented the harm that can come 
when children are court ordered into custody of abusive parents. They ana-
lyzed the court records of 27 custody cases in which courts initially placed 
children in the custody of an allegedly abusive parent and later reversed itself 
and protected the child. Silberg et al. reported that family courts were highly 
suspicious of a mother’s motive for being concerned with abuse and custody 
evaluators and guardian ad litems (GALs) frequently accused mothers of 
alienating their children from fathers and coaching them to report abuse. 
In the majority of the cases (59%), the alleged perpetrator was granted sole 
custody. Some mothers were not allowed any contact with their children, 
and several others were ordered not to speak to their children about abuse 
or report any further concerns about abuse or risk losing any further contact. 
The children spent an average of three years in the abusive parent’s custody 
before the case was reversed. Court records showed evidence of the children’s 
deteriorating mental and physical condition including anxiety, depression, 
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dissociation, PTSD, self-harm, and suicidality. Thirty-three percent of the 
children became suicidal, some repeatedly ran away, and others ended up 
in psychiatric hospitals. 

Conclusion 

Hopefully, the tide is beginning to turn on this issue. The lack of empirical 
support for PAS theory has been repeatedly documented, as has the potential 
for harm when children are diagnosed and treated for this pseudoscientific 
condition. In addition, the confinement of children, who have no mental 
disorder and who have committed no wrong doing, away from parents and 
friends in unfamiliar surroundings in order to force them to adopt a new 
belief system would appear to violate these children’s basic civil rights 
(Kleinman & Kaplan, 2016). As a result, in our view, diagnosing children with 
PAS (or following the same principles without using the label) and 
recommending coercive and untested treatments for child who refuse contact 
constitute a form of professional malpractice. 

In summary, parental alienation as defined by PAS advocates is a popular, 
but faulty, concept which has been disproven by research and is not accepted 
by any professional mental health organization. Coercive and punitive “thera-
pies” recommended for children diagnosed with parental alienation constitute 
an ethical minefield and are especially inappropriate when used on children 
who have already been traumatized. Forced reunification against a child’s will 
and without taking into consideration the child’s point of view and emotional 
well-being, can be expected to reinforce a sense of helplessness and powerless-
ness in an already vulnerable child. Such “treatment” can be expected to do 
more harm than good, and rather than helping their well-being, could cause 
lasting psychological harm, particularly when imposed upon children who 
claim the parent they are being forced to reunify with is abusive. 
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To File.

Mitchell Stipp

Law Office of Mitchell Stipp
T: 702.602.1242 | M: 702.378.1907
E: mstipp@stipplaw.com | www.stipplaw.com

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Mitchell Stipp <mstipp@stipplaw.com>
Date: Sun, Oct 6, 2019 at 6:29 PM
Subject: Calderon v. Stipp (Case No. D-08-389203-Z)
To: Valarie Fujii <val@fujiilawlv.com>
Cc: Radford Smith <rsmith@radfordsmith.com>

Valerie:

I am writing regarding your client's personal therapist, Donna Wilburn.  She attended the hearing
in the above-referenced case on October 1, 2019.  Since she was present at the hearing, she is
aware that your client stipulated to have Nick Ponzo resume family therapy with the goal of
reuniting the children with your client.  Under these circumstances, I was surprised to learn that
Ms. Wilburn contacted Mr. Ponzo last week after the hearing to request his consent and
recommendation for her to provide reunification services to your client and my daughter, Mia
Stipp.  I have previously rejected Ms. Wilburn's involvement with the children for the reasons
described in my filings.  Please be advised that Mr. Ponzo also does not agree to Ms. Wilburn's
involvement.  Based on his knowledge of the family dynamics, he rejects her approach to
reunification. 

I met with Mr. Ponzo for more than 3 hours on Friday.  Mr. Ponzo provided specific advice to
Christina.  Unfortunately, Christina elected not to follow it for purposes of resuming her
timeshare.  Mr. Ponzo warned that her approach (as supported by Ms. Wilburn) would only
further alienate the children.  Christina claims that Mr. Ponzo should have no role in reuniting the
children with her and that Mr. Ponzo is now the therapist only for the children (i.e., no longer
their family therapist).   I do not understand these positions.  Judge Ritchie directed us to work
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out the issues before the court via family therapy.   Your client agreed to use Mr. Ponzo.  Now, it
appears she is not willing to participate meaningfully in this process.  This is bad faith and
undermines my ability to comply with your client's request to see the children. 

Your client wants the children immediately in her physical care notwithstanding the
recommendations of Mr. Ponzo, the children's preferences and concerns, and my concerns
about her parenting skills.  Christina threatened to file a new motion (even though I am
committed to work with her in therapy) unless the children agreed to return to her care on
Friday.  

Please consult with your client on her decision to return to court rather than work with Mr.
Ponzo.  I think litigation is waste of time and resources (because it will not resolve the problems
between Christina and the children).  We are better served working with Mr. Ponzo rather than
litigating.  

Time is of the essence. 

Mitchell Stipp

Law Office of Mitchell Stipp
T: 702.602.1242 | M: 702.378.1907
E: mstipp@stipplaw.com | www.stipplaw.com
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY. NEVADA

CHRISTINA CALDERON, )

Plaintiff, CASE NO. D-08-389203-Z
DEPT. NO. ''H''

ORDER SETTING CASE
MANAGEMENT CONFERENCED. STIPP,

Defendant.

Date of Hearing: October 22,2019
Time of Hearins: 9:00 a.m.

This case was heard on October 1,2019. The parties appeared with

l. The court reviewed the papers and made several orders regarding the

t ofthe parties' post-judgment custody dispute. Specifically, the court

rdered records from the Department of Family Services, the court refened the

es to the Family Mediation Center for Mia and Ethan to be interviewed, the

ordered a resumption ofthe joint physical custody schedule, and the court

that the parties resume working with Nicholas Ponzo. The court set the

hearing for November 12,2019.

Case Number: D-08-389203-Z

Electronically Filed
10/11/2019 10:09 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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DISTRICTIUDGE

FAMIIYDIVISION, OEPT H

LAS VTGAS, NV 89155

On October 7,2019, Mitchell Stipp filed a Status Report. On October 8,

019, Christina Calderon filed an Objection to the Status Report. On October 9,

019, Christina Calderon filed an Emergency Motion for Temporary Physical

ustody and for Writ of Attachment. That motion was set for hearing on

ember 19, 2079, at 10:00 a.m. Christine Calderon filed an ex-parte motion

br an order shortening the time for that hearing. Mitchell Stipp's opposition to

ion for order shortenins the time was filed on October 10. 2019. The court

idered the papers on October 10,2019, and shortened the time for the hearing

Christina Calderon's motion to November 12,2019, at 9:00 a.m.

This court concludes that the parties need direction from the court

ceming the orders that were entered at the hearing on October 1,2019. The

has concems that the Darties either do not understand the orders or will not

bllow the orders orior to the hearine on November 12.2019. Therefore.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the parties shall appear at a case

ent conference on Tuesday, October 22, 2019, at 9:00 a.m., in

H, courtroom 3G, located at the Regional Justice Center.

DArED tni" // auy or /dut ,2s1e.

TRICT COLIRT JUDGE
T ART RITCHIE, JR.
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certi$r that the Order Setting Case Management Conference was filed on

October 11,2019, and the following is a true and correct copy thereof.

On or about the file stamp date the foregoing Order Setting Case Management

Conference was:

I E-Served pursuant to NEFCR 9; placed in attorney folder(s) at the RIC; or
mailed to proper person litigants, via first-class mail, postage fully prepaid to:

Valarie I Fujii, Esq. for
Christina Calderon
PLAINTIFF

Radford J. Smith, Esq. for
Mitchell D. Stipp
DEFENDANT

Katrina Rausch
Judicial Executive Assistant
Department H
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MITCHELL D. STIPP, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 7531 
LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP 
10120 W. Flamingo Rd., Suite 4-124 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89147 
Telephone: 702.602.1242 
mstipp@stipplaw.com 
 
RADFORD J. SMITH, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 2791 
RADFORD J. SMITH, CHARTERED 
2470 St. Rose Parkway, Suite 206 
Henderson, Nevada 89074 
Telephone: 702.990.6448 
rsmith@radfordsmith.com 
Attorneys for Mitchell Stipp, Defendant 
 
 
 
 

IN THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT  
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CLARK 
 

FAMILY DIVISION 
 
 
CHRISTINA CALDERON, 
 
                         Plaintiff, 
 
v. 
 
MITCHELL STIPP, 
               
                         Defendant. 

 
Case No.:   D-08-389203-Z  
 
Dept. No.:  H 
 
 

OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF’S 
MOTION FOR PRIMARY 

PHYSICAL CUSTODY AND 
COUNTERMOTION FOR 

PRIMARY PHYSICAL CUSTODY 
AND RELATED RELIEF 

 
 

Date of Hearing:  November 12, 2019 
Time of Hearing: 9:00 a.m. 

 
 

 	
 

Defendant, Mitchell Stipp, as co-counsel of record, hereby files the above-

referenced opposition/countermotion.  This opposition/countermotion is based on the 

Case Number: D-08-389203-Z

Electronically Filed
10/21/2019 1:29 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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papers and pleadings on file in this case, the memorandum of points and authorities that 

follow, and any exhibits filed separately in support. 

Mitchell respectfully asks the court for the following relief: 

1. Deny the motion for primary physical custody filed by Christina Calderon 

(“Christina”). 

2. Grant Mitchell temporary, primary physical custody of the children with the 

right of the children to exercise teenage discretion pending an evidentiary 

hearing. 

3. Order Christina to participate in therapy with Nick Ponzo.   

 

Dated: October 21, 2019 

LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP    

/s/ Mitchell Stipp, Esq.      
MITCHELL STIPP, ESQ.      
Nevada Bar No. 7531       
LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP    
10120 W. Flamingo Rd., Suite 4-124    
Las Vegas, Nevada 89147      
Telephone: 702.602.1242      
mstipp@stipplaw.com 
Attorneys for Defendant  
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
///     
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 MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I. Introduction.  

Mitchell incorporates by reference his filings made on and after August 26, 2019. 

These filings include, without limitation, the following: 

1. MOTION FOR CHILD INTERVIEW BY FMC, MEDIATION AND TO PERMIT 
CHILDREN TO EXERCISE TEENAGE DISCRETION ON TIMESHARE (AUGUST 
26, 2019) 

2. EXHIBITS IN SUPPORT OF DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR CHILD INTERVIEW BY 
FMC, MEDIATION AND TO PERMIT CHILDREN TO EXERCISE TEENAGE 
DISCRETION ON TIMESHARE (AUGUST 26, 2019) 

3. EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR ORDER SHORTENING TIME AND RELATED 
RELIEF (AUGUST 26, 2019) 

4. NOTICE OF COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN DEFENDANT AND PLAINTIFF'S 
ATTORNEY (AUGUST 29, 2019) 

5. DEFENDANT S OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE, 
REQUEST FOR IMMEDIATE RETURN OF THE CHILDREN, MAKEUP 
VISITATION AND AWARD OF ATTORNEY S FEES AND COUNTERMOTION FOR 
INTERVIEW OF CHILDREN BY FMC, MEDIATION AT FMC, AND FOR 
CHILDREN TO EXERCISE TEENAGE DISCRETION (SEPTEMBER 4, 2019) 

6. DEFENDANT'S EXHIBITS IN SUPPORT OF OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR 
ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE, REQUEST FOR IMMEDIATE RETURN OF THE 
CHILDREN, MAKEUP VISITATION AND AWARD OF ATTORNEY'S FEES AND 
COUNTERMOTION FOR INTERVIEW OF CHILDREN BY FMC, MEDIATION AT 
FMC, AND FOR CHILDREN TO EXERCISE TEENAGE DISCRETION 
(SEPTEMBER 4, 2019) 

7. DECLARATION OF AMY STIPP IN SUPPORT OF DEFENDANT S MOTION FOR 
CHILD INTERVIEW BY FMC, MEDIATION AND TO PERMIT CHILDREN TO 
EXERCISE TEENAGE DISCRETION ON TIMESHARE (SETEMBER 6, 2019) 

8. DECLARATION OF MITCHELL STIPP IN SUPPORT OF DEFENDANT S MOTION 
FOR CHILD INTERVIEW BY FMC, MEDIATION AND TO PERMIT CHILDREN TO 
EXERCISE TEENAGE DISCRETION ON TIMESHARE (SEPTEMBER 6, 2019) 

9. DEFENDANT’S OBJECTION TO LETTER BY CHRISTINA CALDERON S 
THERAPIST DONNA WILBURN AND NOTICE OF LETTER FROM DR. ROY 
LUBIT IN SUPPORT OF OBJECTION (SEPTEMBER 13, 2019) 

10. REPLY TO PLAINTIFF S OPPOSITION TO COUNTERMOTION FOR INTERVIEW 
OF CHILDREN BY FMC, MEDIATION AT FMC, AND FOR CHILDREN TO 
EXERCISE TEENAGE DISCRETION (SEPTEMBER 24, 2019) 

11. EXHIBITS IN SUPPORT OF DEFENDANT S REPLY TO OPPOSITION TO 
COUNTERMOTION FOR CHILD INTERVIEW BY FMC, MEDIATION AND TO 
PERMIT CHILDREN TO EXERCISE TEENAGE DISCRETION ON TIMESHARE 
(SEPTEMBER 24, 2019) 

12. STATUS REPORT (OCTOBER 7, 2019) 
AA000646
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 The nature of the relief requested by Christina Calderon (“Christina”) is 

inextricably intertwined with Mitchell’s request for primary physical custody.  While 

Mitchell prefers not to file a countermotion, Christina’s filing has left Mitchell with no 

choice.  Therefore, for purposes of this filing, Mitchell’s opposition and countermotion 

will be combined. 

II. Background. 

Mitchell filed a motion seeking permission from the court for the children to 

exercise teenage discretion within the confines of the parties’ joint physical custody 

status.  At the hearing, the court wanted the parties to work with Christina’s family 

therapist, Nick Ponzo, with the hope of resolving matters before the court.  Christina 

stipulated to the involvement of Mr. Ponzo.   Unfortunately, therapy cannot be 

effective because Christina is unwilling to agree on a plan of therapy.  Christina desires 

to wait until the status check on October 22, 2019 for the court to clarify her obligation 

to participate in therapy and Mitchell’s obligation to transition the children into her 

physical care.  Christina is under the false notion that Mr. Ponzo’s advice and 

recommendations can be ignored if they concern any condition or qualification of what 

Christina believes is her absolute legal right to have the children in her physical care on 

alternating weeks regardless of the children’s preferences or concerns.    

According to Christina, the children’s preferences and concerns should be 

completely disregarded because they are minors, and it is the responsibility and 

obligation of Mitchell to ensure the children return to her care.  This position is not 

AA000647
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consistent with Mitchell’s duty and responsibility as a parent to act in the children’s best 

interest (if the children are refusing to return).  Christina has even suggested that 

Mitchell punish the children based on what she views is this court’s order.  This court 

did not order Mitchell to punish the children if they did not return to Christina’s physical 

care.  The court was clear:  Mitchell should follow the timeshare arrangement as “best 

as he can,” and “physical force is not required.”  Mitchell does not want the court to 

force him to adopt the parenting style of Christina (which he rejects as harmful to the 

children): disregard the children’s preference, insist on complete obedience, and threaten 

with harm the things the matter the most to the children to get compliance.   

III. Facts. 

Mia is 15 years old; Ethan is 12.  Both are smart and mature even for their ages.  

Both children refuse to return to Christina’s physical care.  There have been at least two 

(2) instances of domestic violence between Mia and Christina in the last six (6) months.  

The children also complain that Christina uses emotional blackmail to secure 

compliance.  Unfortunately, the children have had enough emotional trauma and do not 

want to continue living with Christina unless these issues are resolved.   Mitchell 

believes the children love Christina.  Mitchell respects Christina’s role as the children’s 

mother and wants Christina and the children to have a good relationship.  However, 

Mitchell is concerned that Christina’s parenting techniques have caused substantial harm 

to the children.  While Christina regularly sought the guidance and advice of Mitchell 

on these dynamics, Christina now blames Mitchell for the children’s recent choice not 

AA000648
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to return and wants Mitchell to be punished.    

Mitchell does not deserve punishment by the court.  He wants to avoid litigation 

and resolve the issues before the court through therapy.  He filed his motion one (1) 

judicial day after the children refused to return with Christina.  He also did not seek to 

change custody.  Unless Christina participates in therapy with the children, Mitchell 

does not believe the children will want to return to Christina’s care.  Under these 

circumstances, the exercise of discretion will cause physical custody to change.  Even 

so, Mitchell is not asking the court to change the timeshare of the parties: it can remain 

the same—50/50 (subject to the right of the children to exercise discretion).  However, 

if the children exercise their preference to spend more than sixty percent (60%) of the 

physical time with Mitchell, then he should have primary physical custody (only because 

that is what Nevada law requires).   It is label without any significance in this case:  

Mitchell does not intend to seek child support from Christina and the issue of relocation 

is already addressed in the parties’ parenting plan (i.e., no relocation).        

Mitchell does not believe it is appropriate for him to do more than make the 

children available for the transition, encourage them to go, and assist them with packing 

any personal items (as necessary or appropriate).  It makes no sense for Mitchell to 

punish the children if the children are reporting mistreatment by Christina.  The fact that 

he is encouraging them to return is problematic enough given the issues (physical 

violence).  Mitchell understands that CPS may not investigate parents fighting with their 

children and emotional abuse by a parent.  However, Judge Sullivan had no problem 
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 7 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

confirming the parties’ joint physical custodial relationship and awarding Mitchell 

additional timeshare based on Christina’s bad acts.  See Order filed on November 4, 

2010.  

This court should take note of the following findings by Judge Sullivan: 

• THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that assuming that a joint physical 
custody arrangement does not currently exist, the following facts evidence a 
substantial change in circumstances affecting the welfare of the children 
supporting a change in custody to joint physical custody: 

 

 
c) The spontaneous statements made by Mia to Dr. Kalodner indicating 
that she wanted to spend more time with her dad but her mommy or the 
judge wouldn' t let her. 

 
d) The parties' extremely litigious nature resulting in the children 
becoming embroiled in the proceedings as evidenced by Mia's 
spontaneous statements to Dr. Kalodner indicating that Plaintiff doesn't 
like Amy and that Amy is bad. 

 
e) Dr. Paglini' s report reflecting that the parents have unresolved issues 
that tend to re-emerge and that if they are unable to resolve their issues, it 
is likely that their children will be emotionally affected in the future. 

 

Lines 1-20, Page 17 of Judge Sullivan’s Order (emphasis added). 

• THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the parties are very intelligent, 
highly educated lawyers whose children would be better served by the 
parties resolving their issues between themselves without the need for 
legal and/or therapeutic intervention. 

 

Id. (lines 15-18, Page 18 of Judge Sullivan’s Order (emphasis added). 

 Christina was not happy with Judge Sullivan’s order.  When the case was re-

assigned to Judge Potter, she commenced years of litigation seeking to prove Mitchell 

was in fact the culprit for the problems allegedly experienced by the children.  

Ultimately, the children were evaluated by Christina’s selected professionals.  Neither 
AA000650
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therapist concluded Mitchell was the cause of any issue.  In fact, Dr. Lewis Etcoff 

concluded the following regarding Christina’s parenting skills: 

Christina Calderon-Stipp appears to perceive more significant 
behavior problems in her daughter. Her descriptions of discipline 
methods do not appear to be well-honed or consistently 
implemented, thus resulting in Mia learning that she can bend the 
rules at her mother's home. Christina therefore would greatly 
benefit from behavior management training where she would meet 
with the therapist to discuss examples of Mia's behaviors and how 
Christina can adjust routines, consequences, and rewards to manage 
Mia. 

 
Report by Dr. Etcoff, dated July 27, 2011 (Page 12) (emphasis added). 

 While Mitchell was pleased Christina hired a parenting coach, he is disappointed 

that Christina has not changed her parenting style.  Part of the problem could be the 

advice she receives from Donna Wilburn.  She uses Ms. Wilburn for personal therapy.  

However, she hired Nick Ponzo in 2015 as her family therapist.  Christina claims therapy 

with Mr. Ponzo was not successful.  Again, she blames Mitchell.  Therapy with Mr. 

Ponzo was likely not successful because Christina was not honest about her parenting 

techniques, and Ms. Wilburn may have given Christina advice which was not consistent 

with the counseling provided by Mr. Ponzo, who was actually working with the 

children.  Ms. Wilburn has not evaluated or treated the children.    

 Mitchell consented to Christina working with Mr. Ponzo in 2015 as her family 

therapist.  Mitchell participated in family therapy when requested by Christina.  This 

occurred in 2017.   Below is an example of the issues Christina attempted to resolve 

with Mr. Ponzo: 
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---------- Forwarded message --------- 

From: Christina <ccstipp@gmail.com> 

Date: Sun, Jul 23, 2017 at 8:02 PM 

Subject: Re: Mia 

To: Mitchell Stipp <mstipplv@gmail.com> 

 

 

Here's some observations of the week and the incidents that will give you 

an idea of what's been going on: 

 

Mia has been increasingly verbally and physically abusive.  She reacts 

violently when she says that Ethan is teasing her.  Yesterday, she grabbed 

an apple in our dorm room and threw it hard at Ethan.  He retaliated in 

kind, which I have warned him not to, but I have also told Mia that if she 

hits him, it provokes him to hit back and she needs to learn to not touch 

people or destroy things, especially when she is angry.   I don't recall what 

provoked her to throw the apple.  Ethan was getting ready for the talent 

show and hadn't even been in the room until right before we were to leave. 

 

Her outburst yesterday preceded a family talent show that she, at the last 

minute, said she didn't want to participate in.  I notice her moods are prone 

to anger and irritability when she is anxious about something. At first she 

wanted to do the talent show and then right b4 she didn't.  I said she didn't 

have to but she then didn't even want to watch it it have dinner before 

it.   She was also anxious at the start of the camp.   

 

Mia was upset that Ethan threw the apple at her so she grabbed a banana 
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and proceeded to smash it and splatter it all over our dorm room.  I made 

her clean it up.  I took away her phone and iPad.  She responds by saying 

she doesn't want to live with me then. 

 

Today, she got her phone and iPad back in the morning and was rude and 

sullen and disrespectful the entire car ride back.  When we got home she 

was angry at Ethan.  He had been talking about some boy he thought that 

Mia liked.  When Mia demanded the name, Ethan refused to provide 

it.  Mia then charged at and pushed Ethan.  Ethan pushed her back and she 

landed in a bush which scratched her.   

 

I took away her phone and iPad again.  She called me a 

whore.  Repeatedly tonight.  She said that you divorced me because you 

didn't love me and that she doesn't love me either.  She threw some things 

out of my car and onto the lawn.  

 

I asked her not to call me a whore again.  I told her that she might not like 

or love me but that she needed to respect me, and I will do the same for 

her.  During the argument with Ethan she repeatedly pushed and hit me.   

 

She has made statements about wanting to "die in a hole" or "just kill 

me."  When I talk to her about those sentiments she says she doesn't mean 

them literally but she keeps saying those things.   

 

I would appreciate your support in talking to her about her violence and 

abusive talk.  She says terrible things to Ethan too.  Today she told him 

that even Mitchell Jr. doesn't like him, which hurt Ethan. 
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I have admonished Ethan about how he talks to Mia.  He might not see it 

as teasing, but Mia seems to take anything that Ethan says as an insult or 

competition.   

 

Ethan was very good during the camp.  He tried many times and in many 

ways to get Mia to make friends and enjoy herself. He tried to make 

friends for her.   Mia participated in some activities and had some good 

moments but the majority of the time she was being anti social and 

rude.  She doesn't seem to like it that Ethan was making friends easily and 

she was not.  She liked it when a couple of the kids told her they didn't 

like Ethan and wanted her to join their secret club.   

 

Some things that Mia enjoyed were finding and playing with sand crabs on 

the beach.  She did the sack races.  She participated in water play.  At one 

point during the camp she expressed possibly actually wanting to go to 

Pepperdine.  In the past she has rejected it because "I went there."   

 

She seemed to enjoy some aspects of surfing.  She had a couple of good 

mood days in the beginning of camp but it looked like when she failed to 

sustain any friends she became more and more angry and 

withdrawn.  There were one or two girls her age that tried to befriend her 

but she didn't reciprocate.  Her expression was negative.  We talked about 

how her expression could be perceived as unwelcoming. We shared some 

laughs over how she makes her expression friendly at Faith. ethan said 

that during the kid sessions she would stay on her phone. 

 

She didn't want to miss any of the kids camp sessions though.  She wanted 

to go to them.  Insisted on not missing anything until last night. 
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Ethan was very social and enjoyed his time meeting and making new 

friends.  He played basketball with the kids and counselors.  He 

participated in the talent show.  He tried to be helpful to Mia but her 

attitude was negative and resistant to him the majority of the time.  He 

enjoyed learning about Pepperdine and enjoyed the weather.  

 

Any suggestions on how to best address these things? 

 

Sent from my iPhone 

 

> On Jul 23, 2017, at 6:56 PM, Mitchell Stipp <mstipplv@gmail.com> 

wrote: 

>  

> What is the problem?  Is her anger directed to someone specifically or 

everyone.  I'd like to help address specific circumstances/situations and if 

you could provide examples and details, Amy and I can have discussions 

with her about her behavior.   

>  

> Sent from my iPhone 

>  

>> On Jul 23, 2017, at 6:31 PM, Christina <ccstipp@gmail.com> wrote: 

>>  

>> Yes.  I'll have them call you once we are settled in.  She is having 

trouble controlling her anger and impulses.  I would like your support in 

getting her to attend counseling.   

>>  

>> I want her to stop taking Singulair.  I would like to see if that has a 
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positive affect on her negative attitude as well.   

>>  

>> Sent from my iPhone 

>>  

>>> On Jul 23, 2017, at 6:17 PM, Mitchell Stipp <mstipplv@gmail.com> 

wrote: 

>>>  

>>> Ok, may I speak to her and Ethan today.  I have not spoken to them 

this week. 

>>>  

>>> Sent from my iPhone 

>>>  

>>>> On Jul 23, 2017, at 6:15 PM, Christina <ccstipp@gmail.com> 

wrote: 

>>>>  

>>>> Mia has been rude and disrespectful on this trip.  She is not 

permitted to bring her phone back to my home until she learns to be 

respectful.   

>>>>  

>>>> Sent from my iPhone 
 

Christina pretends the dynamics which exist in her home are a recent phenomenon.  

They are not.  Mitchell has never experienced the kind of behaviors of which 

Christina reports about the children.  How is this possible?  Mia is an excellent 

student with no behavior problems in school or when in Mitchell’s care.  Ethan is a 

good student with generally good behavior in school and no issues while in 

Mitchell’s care.   Yet, the children are somehow “wild animals” while in Christina’s 
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care?  Under these circumstances, Mitchell believes there is clearly something 

wrong which deserves the time and attention of this court.  Instead, Christina wants 

the court to order Mitchell to facilitate forced reunification as recommended by Ms. 

Wilburn.  Dr. Roy Lubit cites in his letter dated October 10, 2019 the following: 

Dallam and Silberg (2016) in Journal of Child Custody write “The coercive 
and punitive ‘therapies’ recommended for children diagnosed with parental 
alienation constitute an ethical minefield and are especially inappropriate 
when used on children who have already been traumatized. Forced 
reunification against a child’s will and without taking into consideration the 
child’s point of view and emotional wellbeing, can be expected to reinforce 
a sense of helplessness and powerlessness in an already vulnerable child. 
Such ‘treatment’ can be expected to do more harm than good, and rather 
than helping their well-being, could cause lasting psychological harm, 
particularly when imposed upon children who claim the parent they are 
being forced to reunify with is abusive.” 

 

Mitchell views Christina’s behavior as difficult to monitor, regulate and change.  

For example, Christina has told the children that their brother, Mitchell, Jr., will 

die from his medical issues (genetic disorder, mitochondrial disease, epilepsy, and 

autism spectrum disorder).  The point was to punish them for wanting to spend 

more time with him during Easter in 2017.   Consistent with this approach, on 

Friday, October 18, 2019, during the planned custody exchange, Christina 

communicated the following to Mitchell: 

You are an insecure parent and have no control over 
Amy.  Amy is upset because she could not have a 
normal child with you.  So, she is trying to take Mia 
and Ethan as her own children.     

 

Clearly, Christina has unresolved issues about Mitchell’s remarriage and the fact 

that Mitchell has another child, who both Mia and Ethan love and adore.  While 
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Mitchell, Jr. has significant medical issues, he is a wonderful son and fantastic 

brother to Mia and Ethan.  If Christina is capable of saying things like this to the 

children and Mitchell, what else is she capable of saying and doing? 

 Christina’s motion and supplemental affidavit are not based on facts.  Neither 

child wanted to return to Christina’s care on October 4, 2019 or October 18, 2019.  

This may have been different had Christina began therapy as ordered by the court.  

Christina’s description of the events on October 18 are pure fantasy—which she has 

crafted to portray Mitchell in a way that supports her litigation position.  First, 

Mitchell spoke with Christina at his home at 6pm on October 18.  It was during this 

conversation that Christina made the hurtful comments about Mitchell, Jr. above.  

Mitchell did not threaten Christina.   He pleaded with her to work out these issues 

with the children through therapy to avoid the cost and emotional toll of litigation 

on the parties and the children.  Christina refused.   She believes that this court 

intends to award her primary physical custody at the status check.  What Christina 

does not know is Ethan asked Mitchell to attend his baseball practice.  He was 

adamant not to return to Christina’s care.  Mitchell did not interfere with Christina’s 

attempt to convince Ethan to go with her.  Ethan communicated very clearly to 

Christina that he did not want to be with her because he was unhappy with the 

fighting which regularly occurs in Christina’s home.  Christina specifically asked 

Ethan if Mitchell was preventing him from returning.  Ethan responded “no.”  After 

Mitchell and Ethan left, Christina sent an email alleging different facts.   Mitchell 

did return to the baseball field.  He spoke to Christina in front of Ethan through their 
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respective automobile windows.  Christina was forced to retract her claims in front 

of Ethan (which caused her to get angry).  She was exposed for lying—a typical 

complaint of the children.   She began to yell and scream from her car window that 

she would never stop "fighting for her kids.”  Both Mitchell and Ethan were shocked 

by Christina’s behavior.  Ethan’s response to Mitchell was, “See Dad, this is why I 

do not want to live with Mom.” 

Mitchell has met with Mr. Ponzo, who is waiting on Christina to agree to 

therapy.  At Mr. Ponzo’s request, in the interim, Mitchell has scheduled individual 

sessions with the children on October 21, 2019 and October 22, 2019.  Both children 

are also scheduled for interviews at FMC on October 23, 2019. 

VI. Applicable Law. 

The court may modify or vacate its child custody order at any time. NRS 

125C.0045. When considering whether to modify physical custody, the court must 

determine what type of physical custody arrangement exists between the parties. The 

court must look at the actual physical custody timeshare the parties are exercising to 

determine what custody arrangement is in effect. Rivero v. Rivero, 125 Nev. 410, 430, 

216 P.3d 213, 227 (2009). Different tests apply to modify custody depending on the 

current custody arrangement. Joint physical custody may be modified or terminated if it 

is in the best interest of the child. NRS 125C.0045; Truax v. Truax, 110 Nev. 473, 874 

P.2d 10 (1994). Primary physical custody may be modified only when “(1) there has 

been a substantial change in circumstances affecting the welfare of the child, and (2) the 
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modification would serve the child's best interest.” Ellis v. Carucci, 123 Nev. 145, 153, 

161 P.3d 239, 244 (2007). 

NRS 125C.003(1)(c) provides as follows: 

      1.  A court may award primary physical custody to a 
parent if the court determines that joint physical custody is 
not in the best interest of a child. An award of joint 
physical custody is presumed not to be in the best interest 
of the child if: 

      (c) Except as otherwise provided in subsection 6 of 
NRS 125C.0035 or NRS 125C.210, there has been a 
determination by the court after an evidentiary hearing and 
finding by clear and convincing evidence that a parent has 
engaged in one or more acts of domestic violence against 
the child, a parent of the child or any other person residing 
with the child. The presumption created by this paragraph 
is a rebuttable presumption. 

 

A substantial change in circumstances has occurred since the parties entered into 

their parenting plan in 2014.  There have been several instances of domestic violence in 

Christina’s home for which Mitchell believes Christina is the cause.  Mitchell believes 

the first such event occurred in 2017.  Physical violence is never a solution to disputes 

with children.  The recent instances of physical violence in May and August of 2019 

caused the children to decide they did not want to return to Christina’s physical care 

until the issues were resolved.   

The best interest of the children is served by granting Mitchell temporary and 

permanent primary physical custody of the children subject to the right of the children 

to exercise teenage discretion.  The timeshare arrangement does not need to change; 
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however, the children should be permitted to exercise teenage discretion.  The goal 

would be that the issues with Christina and the children are resolved in therapy and 

Christina will resume a normal timeshare based on the preferences of the children.   

The type of physical custody arrangement is particularly important in three 

situations. First, it determines the standard for modifying physical custody.  Rivero v. 

Rivero, 216 P.3d 213 (2009).  Second, it requires a specific procedure if a parent wants 

to move out of state with the child.  Potter v. Potter, 121 Nev. 613, 618, 119 P.3d 1246, 

1249 (2005).  Third, the type of physical custody arrangement affects the child support 

award.  Barbagallo v. Barbagallo, 105 Nev. 546, 549, 779 P.2d 532, 534 (1989).  Here, 

Mitchell is not seeking child support from Christina, and the parties are not permitted to 

relocate with the children.  Essentially, physical custody is a label.  Mitchell initially 

sought to leave the joint physical custody arrangement in place.  However, the children 

are spending more time with Mitchell than expected because Christina will not 

participate in therapy.     

Under NRS 125C.0035(4), in determining the best interest of the child, the 

court shall consider and set forth its specific findings concerning, among other 

things: 

      (a) The wishes of the child if the child is of sufficient age and capacity to 

form an intelligent preference as to his or her physical custody. 

Both children would like to exercise teenage discretion and determine with 

whom they should spend time. 

      (b) Any nomination of a guardian for the child by a parent. 
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N/A. 

      (c) Which parent is more likely to allow the child to have frequent 

associations and a continuing relationship with the noncustodial parent. 

Neither parent has the ability to prevent the children from spending time with 

the other parent. 

      (d) The level of conflict between the parents. 

The level of conflict is high.  However, the source of the conflict is Christina’s 

parenting decisions and desire to punish Mitchell through litigation.   

      (e) The ability of the parents to cooperate to meet the needs of the child. 

Mitchell has the ability to cooperate with Christina to meet the needs of the 

children.  Christina struggles with cooperation.  She has difficulty putting the 

interest of the children above her own.  She has unresolved issues with Mitchell’s 

marriage to Amy and the fact that Mitchell and Amy have a son which is the sibling 

of the children. 

      (f) The mental and physical health of the parents. 

 Both parties are mentally and physically healthy.  However, Christina choice 

to physically fight with Mia and emotionally blackmail the children causes Mitchell 

concern.  While Christina may have mental health issues, Mitchell believes they can 

be resolved through therapy (if she is willing to be honest, trust the process and 

participate). 

      (g) The physical, developmental and emotional needs of the child. 

 The children are physically, developmentally and emotionally sound.  
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Christina exaggerates the recent incident with Ethan at school.  Ethan and another 

student were playing rough.  The other student was injured.  The school specifically 

determined that Ethan did not intend to harm the other student.  Ethan apologized.  

The student’s parents did not file a police report or initiate any litigation.  While 

Ethan was suspended from school as required by the policy of the school, he has 

been specifically complimented by the school for his subsequent good behavior.   

      (h) The nature of the relationship of the child with each parent. 

 Mitchell has a great relationship with the children.  Christina’s relationship is 

poor.  The reason for this is Christina’s parenting skills. 

      (i) The ability of the child to maintain a relationship with any sibling. 

 Mia is 15 years old.  Ethan is 12 years old.  The children have been raised 

together.  Both have a brother, Mitchell, Jr., who is the son of Mitchell and Amy.   

Mitchell, Jr. is 8 years old.  He has special needs.  Both Mia and Ethan have a strong 

bond with Mitchell, Jr., and are instrumental to his overall development.    

      (j) Any history of parental abuse or neglect of the child or a sibling of the 

child. 

 CPS has not confirmed any parental abuse or neglect.  Emotional abuse and 

physical fighting are apparently not in the category of items investigated by CPS. 

      (k) Whether either parent or any other person seeking physical custody has 

engaged in an act of domestic violence against the child, a parent of the child or 

any other person residing with the child. 

 Neither parent has been charged with domestic violence.  However, Christina 
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and Mia have been in several physical altercations. 

      (l) Whether either parent or any other person seeking physical custody has 

committed any act of abduction against the child or any other child. 

 Neither parent has committed an act of abduction.  

 The most important factor here is the preference of the children given 

Christina’s refusal to participate in therapy, her parenting style and poor relationship 

with the children.  Until these matters are resolved through therapy, there will likely 

be more physical confrontations, which Mitchell would like to avoid.  No parent 

should emotionally blackmail their children or physically fight with them.  Under 

the circumstances, the children should be able to select which parent provides them 

the care, comfort and security that will provide them the best possible chance for 

normal development and success.  For now, that is Mitchell.       

Dated: October 21, 2019 

LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP    

/s/ Mitchell Stipp, Esq.      
MITCHELL STIPP, ESQ.      
Nevada Bar No. 7531       
LAW OFFICE OF MITCHELL STIPP    
10120 W. Flamingo Rd., Suite 4-124    
Las Vegas, Nevada 89147      
Telephone: 702.602.1242      
mstipp@stipplaw.com 

/// 

/// 

/// 
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DECLARATION OF MITCHELL STIPP 

I hereby declare and state as follows: 

1. I am competent and willing to testify in a court of law as to the facts contained in 

this opposition/countermotion (which are incorporated herein by this reference). 

2. I have personal knowledge of these facts, save those stated upon information 

and/or belief, and as to those matters, I believe them to be true. 

/s/ Mitchell Stipp   

Mitchell Stipp 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that on the 21st day of October, 2019, I filed the foregoing 

using the Court’s E-filing system, which provided notice to the e-service participants 

registered in this case. 

 

 By:         /s/ Amy Hernandez 

  __________________________________________ 
  An employee of the Law Office of Mitchell Stipp 
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DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

**** 

 

In the Matter of the Joint Petition for 

Divorce of:  

Mitchell David Stipp and Christina 

Calderon Stipp 

Case No.: D-08-389203-Z 

  

Department H 
 

 

 

NOTICE OF HEARING 

 

 

      Please be advised that the Plaintiff's Motion to Compel Defendant's Discovery 

Responses, Including Answers to Interrogatories and Responses to Requests for Production 

of Documents; Failure to Make NRCP 16.2 Disclosures and Productions; and for an Award 

of Attorney's Fees and Costs in the above-entitled matter is set for hearing as follows:  

Date:  February 28, 2020 

Time:  1:00 PM 

Location: Courtroom 15 

   Family Courts and Services Center 

   601 N. Pecos Road 

   Las Vegas, NV 89101 

 

NOTE: Under NEFCR 9(d), if a party is not receiving electronic service through the 

Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System, the movant requesting a 

hearing must serve this notice on the party by traditional means. 

 

 STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CEO/Clerk of the Court 

 

 

By: 

 

 

/s/ Desiree Darris 

 Deputy Clerk of the Court 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 

I hereby certify that pursuant to Rule 9(b) of the Nevada Electronic Filing and Conversion 

Rules a copy of this Notice of Hearing was electronically served to all registered users on 

this case in the Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System. 

 

 

By: /s/ Desiree Darris 

 Deputy Clerk of the Court 
 

Case Number: D-08-389203-Z

Electronically Filed
1/14/2020 1:13 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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